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The full set of audited accounts of which these accounts are a summary version, was approved by the Board of Directors on 8 September
2010 and signed on their behalf by David McKeith and Bernard Knight CBE. The Independent Auditor’s Statement was not qualified in any
respect. Copies will be filed with the Charity Commissioners and the Registrar of Companies in due course. The full set is available on written
request from the Company’s registered office.
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I am tempted to call this a story of two halves, which perhaps
reveals one of my other cultural interests, in football (and I write this
with the recent World Cup still in mind). 

The first half of the story shows the Hallé at the top of its game and
in the premier division of world orchestras throughout the year. The
Chief Executive’s review of the year highlights so many outstanding
events and performances that it is hard to select my own favourites.
The Mahler series, working in collaboration with the BBC
Philharmonic and the Manchester Camerata, was a deserved
success and a tangible reflection of the depth of musical talent in
Manchester. The combination of new pieces with Mahler’s
monumental symphonies was thrilling. Last summer I had the
privilege of travelling with the Hallé on our short tour to the German
cities of Cologne and Frankfurt to hear the same Liszt and Dvor̆ák
programme in two radically different halls.

The Hallé’s education and outreach programme goes from strength
to strength, with such a tremendous variety of work touching the
lives of so many people – more than 35,000 in the last year. This
work has received recognition in many forms and from many
sources, but none more pleasing than the award of an MBE in the
Queen’s honours’ list to Ewan Easton, our tuba player, for the
inspirational work he has been involved with at Thorn Cross Young
Offenders’ Institute. Ewan is just one of the many members of the
Orchestra who volunteer to take part in our Education work. The
tremendous variety and high quality of the education work the Hallé
does with people from all sections of the community is increasingly
recognised as a vital part of our activity by our funders from the
public and private sectors. The experience of being either a
participant, artist or simply an observer can profoundly change lives
for the better. I am sure that any of you who have been lucky enough
to see any of our outreach programmes in action will share this view.

The Youth ensembles and Children’s Choir have continued to produce
outstanding work both alone and with the Orchestra. The Harmony
Youth Orchestra was a uniquely exciting project and I hope that
many of you were able to see the results broadcast on Channel 4
television over the summer. It really does show the power of music
as a force for good. 

Mark Elder’s leadership continues to be inspirational and I have
come to appreciate how much of what we do is influenced by his
vision. It is particularly important, as we face the coming year, that
we keep this vision uppermost in our minds.

Now to the more depressing second half of the story. You are all too
well aware of the deep financial crisis and recession that have hit the
global and UK economies in the last two years. The Hallé has
inevitably not been immune and we have suffered in particular from
a reduction in the number of businesses supporting our activities.
That is reflected in the financial results we are reporting here. In the
short term we are very grateful to the Arts Council for granting us
an award from their Sustain budget to help us withstand the worst
effects of the crisis. Looking forward, I am very pleased to see a
number of new and returning corporate sponsors in the current
season and we are all hugely grateful for their support.

As you know, the country now faces an unprecedented budget
deficit. The government is taking action to reduce it. This clearly has
consequences for all of us, whether as individuals or organisations.
We are already changing our plans in response to the policy
decisions which have been announced, but we are in a period of
considerable uncertainty. As an organisation which relies
substantially on public funding we await the outcome of the
comprehensive spending review with some trepidation. Any cut in
our funding from these sources inevitably means we will need to
seek resources elsewhere, or to reduce the scope of what we do. I
sincerely hope that we are not forced into retrenchment and an
undoing of the tremendous gains we have made in almost every
aspect of the Hallé’s life over the last ten years. I am sure that you
as members, ticket buyers, donors, sponsors and other funders will
not let that happen, and I would personally like to thank you all for
your continuing support.

I do not want to end on an alarmist note, and please be assured that
my fellow directors and the management and Orchestra are all too
well aware of the situation, and are determined to ensure that there
is no repeat of the problems of the late 1990s. 

So, to end, I believe that the Hallé is in a very strong position to
weather the difficulties ahead and I know that we can rely on your
unwavering support. I have now met many of you personally, and
still never cease to be amazed by the loyalty and passion you share
for our Orchestra. We have a tremendous season ahead and I look
forward to seeing you over the coming months.

David McKeith
Chairman
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• visits to the prestigious Cheltenham and Edinburgh Festivals and
the Leeds Piano Competition – where the Halle is the resident
orchestra. 

• the collaboration with the BBC Philharmonic and Manchester
Camerata on a complete chronological cycle of Mahler symphonies.
In front of each symphony was the world premiere of a new work.
Critical acclaim has been extraordinary and box office has
exceeded all expectations. It is not an overstatement to say that –
in matters of orchestra collaboration – Manchester leads the
world.

• the continued growth of audience levels in our two residencies
outside Manchester (Nottingham and Sheffield).

• a new principal guest conductor in Markus Stenz
(Generalmusikdirektor for the City of Cologne, with responsibility
for Cologne Opera and the Gurzenich Orchestra) who succeeded
Cristian Mandeal.

• the appointment of a new Young Conductor, Andrew Gourlay, who
takes over the post from Ewa Strusińska in the autumn. Andrew is
‘home grown’, studying on the joint course between Manchester
University and the Royal Northern College of Music. Following his
recent appointment to the Hallé he won the prestigious Cadaques
conducting competition from a large field of international talent.

Awards 
I am very pleased to report that the following awards were received
during the year:

• The Gramophone Choral Award for The Dream of Gerontius.

Summary highlights of the Artistic Year
The 2009/10 season was one of outstanding artistic success with
some major projects throughout the year. Some of these were, of
necessity, outside normal budgets and we are very grateful that the
fundraising that accompanied the 150th season was in place to
support them.

The Highlights of the artistic year included:
• the performance and recording of Wagner’s Götterdämmerung in

The Bridgewater Hall. The concerts and recordings (in both CD and
MP3 formats) have received, and continue to receive, outstanding
reviews from across the globe. The recently released recording has
been featured as Gramophone Editor’s Choice, BBC Music

magazine Opera Choice, disc of the month in Classic FM magazine

and Sunday Times CD of the week.

• a tour of Spain – where the Orchestra and Choir gave two cycles
of the complete symphonies of Mendelssohn. We are especially
grateful to the Choir for contributing to the costs of their
involvement in this project.

• a short tour to Germany with concerts with Sir Mark Elder and
Jean-Yves Thibaudet in Frankfurt and Cologne. 

• the Hallé’s contribution to the Manchester International Festival,
where the Orchestra and Youth Choir collaborated with Elbow –
with work newly written for the occasion. The performance was
relayed live to the Castlefield Arena in Manchester where it was
enjoyed free by an audience of around 5,500 people. This was one
of the most successful projects of recent years and a highlight of
the Festival.
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• South Bank Show Classical Award for the collaboration on Nielsen
Symphonies with the City of Birmingham Symphony Orchestra.

• Arts & Business People Development award for a collaboration
with Siemens PLC. 

Artistic Programming
Our experiences during the year endorsed our decision to stick with
a high profile (but riskier) artistic programme. Particularly pleasing
has been the audience and critical response to the Mahler cycle,
where audience levels were far higher than had been experienced in
the past for individual Mahler symphonies – even with a new work
in each concert. It is clear that the public responds well to the ‘big
idea’.

St Peter’s, Ancoats
I am disappointed to report that little progress has been made on
the Hallé’s aspiration for a new rehearsal and education facility in
Ancoats – although we are still moving forward with our partners to
find ways that we can deliver a phased project against the backdrop
of a severe tightening of public finances.

Hallé Education
The Education Programme continued to deliver a broad range of
high quality projects across Greater Manchester. The North West
Music Partnership programme has been extended to include Wigan,
alongside Manchester, Salford, Bolton and Stockport music services.
The partnership with the Hallé continues to focus on the benefit of
close cooperation and the way that working with professional
musicians from the Orchestra can broaden and enhance the musical
experience for the young people. 

Much of the education and community programme focussed on four
schemes. Firstly, Hallé for Youth, the Orchestra’s series of Spring
Schools concerts at The Bridgewater Hall. This season four concerts
were performed in February to around 7,000 young people. This
year’s creative project, connected to the concerts, involved primary
schools from Wigan and Trafford performing alongside the
Orchestra. The same children were also involved with a dance
project with students from the Northern Ballet School and the
creative impetus for all of this was provided by four specially
selected paintings from the collection at Manchester Art Gallery. In
the second scheme, the Hallé has been working as part of the
Aspiration Strategy of the Greater Manchester Challenge. Many
hundreds of children and young people from across the ten boroughs
have been involved principally with two projects; a literacy and
numeracy project at The Bridgewater Hall and a business studies
project, Hallé Impresarios, for Year 10. The third activity, and
probably the most spectacular project is Come and Play with the
Hallé. Focussing on ‘Wider Opportunities’ over the next three years
the Hallé is working with all ten Greater Manchester music services
to give many thousands of primary school children the opportunity
to come and play and sing with the Hallé at The Bridgewater Hall in
a specially designed schools concert. This programme started last
summer with the North West Music Partnership and involved
Bolton, Manchester, Salford and Stockport children and this year
will also involve children from Wigan, Oldham and Bury.

The final scheme in the programme is the Hallé’s Adopt-a-Player
project. This season schools from Wythenshawe and Denton have
been working creatively with adopted players from the Orchestra
and children and young people from primary and high schools in
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Next season we plan to involve Rochdale, Salford and Manchester in
similar activities.

Hallé Ensembles 
The Hallé Choir worked with a number of different choral specialists
throughout 2009-10 while searching for a new Choral Director.
Musical highlights included performing Mendelssohn’s Symphony
No.2 (Lobgesang) in Valencia and at the BBC Proms, and performing
and recording Elgar’s The Kingdom. The Choir also performed
Mahler’s Second and Eighth Symphonies as part of the Mahler cycle
staged in collaboration between the Hallé and the BBC
Philharmonic, and three a cappella concerts in churches around the
North West. We are very grateful indeed for all of the effort and
expertise that these talented singers provide to audiences at our
concerts from as far afield as Manchester and Valencia 

The Hallé Youth Ensembles had an exceptionally busy year during
2009-10. 

The Hallé Harmony Youth Orchestra has now completed its two year
programme and the four one hour films (Orchestra United) were
broadcast in July and August of this year. We believe that these
films provide a powerful demonstration of the positive power of the
arts in building social cohesion and awakening interests and skills in
young people that will accompany them all their lives.

The Hallé Youth Orchestra and Youth Choir shared a residential
course at Casterton School, Cumbria, in July 2009. Residential
courses are particularly special as the musical impact of living
alongside each other for a few days is always impressive. The Youth

Orchestra then went on tour to Wales, performing in Brecon and
Cardiff, and the Youth Choir joined the Hallé and Hallé Choir for a
performance of Mendelssohn’s Lobgesang at the BBC Proms. The
Youth Choir then joined a number of youth choirs from across the
country to perform Handel’s Messiah at the BBC Proms in
September. 

The Youth Orchestra had the opportunity to work closely with Hallé
players for a joint performance under the direction of Sir Mark Elder
CBE and Ewa Strusińska in February 2010. It has also enjoyed a link
with the Royal Opera House, focussing on the specific musical skills
required for accompanying professional ballet dancers; this project
has included two trips to the Royal Opera House to observe
professional stage and orchestra rehearsals and to accompany
professional dancers in workshops.

The Hallé Children’s Choir performed alongside the Hallé and Hallé
Choirs for the American-themed summer programme in July and the
Christmas Carol concerts in December 2009; these experiences are
a great way to introduce young singers to an orchestra in addition
to encouraging their own musical development. The Children’s Choir
also performed Captain Noah and His Floating Zoo by Flanders and
Horowitz in March 2010. Children’s Choir Director, Shirley Court,
chose this piece because it is great fun as well as educational, and
the project presented a really good opportunity for the children to
explore some basic drama work alongside their singing with the help
of drama specialist Wendy Cook. The children really responded to
the challenge, especially the invitation to personalise their
contributions within the overall drama. The whole experience has
helped them to reconsider their approach to communicating with
the audience in every performance.
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The Orchestra
Once again there have been a number of changes in personnel. We
welcomed Andrew Maher as 5th horn and said goodbye to Alison
Lee-Brown from the bassoon section, Alexandra Stemp from the
first violins and Dan Whibley from the double basses. 

I would like to thank every member of the Orchestra for their
contribution and commitment. They are at the heart of what we do
and have given some truly outstanding performances throughout the
year both on stage and in our educational work.

Sponsorship and Fundraising
During the 2009/10 season the reorganised Hallé development
team were able to introduce a new series of strategic plans, many of
which are now beginning to bear fruit. In particular work with the
private sector intensified and we have been able to announce a new
Major Sponsor, P Z Cussons, and several new project sponsors in
time for the 2010/11 season. 

However the 2009/10 season was challenging for fundraising in
many ways. The Corporate Membership Scheme was heavily hit by
the downturn in the financial markets. Traditionally we draw many
of our members from the financial services and professional services
sectors and we saw a significant reduction across the board as
companies faced reductions in their budgets. 

Our work with Trusts and Foundations increased and we welcomed
many new supporters to the Hallé during 2009/10 including the J
Paul Getty Junior Charitable Trust, The Radcliffe Trust and the PRS
Foundation.

In addition our patron and chair endowment schemes continue to
create interesting and innovative ways of connecting our musicians
with our greatest supporters. We have plans to deliver new benefits
and opportunities during 2010/2011 to take us on from the success
of the 2009/2010 financial year and the success of the 150th
Anniversary campaign. 

During 2009/10 we continued to receive strong support from both
the corporate sector and individuals for our fundraising events
including the fourth NSPCC/Hallé Ball which netted an impressive
amount for both charities. A Hallé team competed once again in the
Great Manchester Run and our annual Golf Day once again proved
to be a popular attraction. 

2010/11 looks likely to be a much improved year for fundraising
although we are acutely aware of the challenges ahead and want to
repeat our thanks to all our supporters at every level, without whom
our work could not continue. 

Our Funders
We are as ever indebted to our funders and would like to thank
AGMA for the uplift in our annual revenue grant from 2009/10
together with an undertaking that the whole grant will be index
linked for three years. We would also like to thank Manchester City
Council for agreeing to increase their grant to support the increased
costs of our residency at the Bridgewater Hall following the change
in the operating arrangements for the Bridgewater Hall. We
appreciate that the coming months and years are going to be
challenging for them following the government’s actions to reduce
public spending, but look forward to their continuing support in
these difficult times.

The Arts Council too, faces cut backs in its funding. Their significant
support over the last 10 years has enabled a step-change in the

Hallé’s fortunes both artistically and financially. The recent Sustain
award has helped us weather the recession to date in reasonably
good shape and has enabled us to continue to perform exciting and
challenging repertoire. However, the Department for Culture, Media
and Sport recently announced a £19m reduction in its budget for
2010/11 in addition to an earlier in-year reduction of £4m.
Inevitably, some of this reduction has been passed on to their clients
and, in common with all other regularly funded organisations, we
have had our grant for the current year reduced by half a percent.
Significant future cuts to the Arts Council’s funding are threatened
and we wait to see the impact they will have on the Hallé and its
programme of work.

The Administration, Board and Trustees
Once again I would like to thank the Board and the trustees of our
associated trusts for their support, giving their time and expertise so
generously. I would particularly like to thank the Chairman, David
McKeith, for the work he undertakes tirelessly on our behalf and
whose support and encouragement is so valuable to me. In these
difficult and uncertain times their commitment and wise judgement
is more critical than ever. My thanks also go to all the members of
the Administration for their hard work behind the scenes.

Finally, I cannot finish this report without a special mention for
someone who will be well known to so many of you, Patsy Lawler,
our Membership Administrator who retired earlier this year. I know
you would want to join me in wishing her a long and happy
retirement and will enjoy seeing her at concerts over the coming
season.

John Summers
Chief Executive
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The trustees, who are also directors of the charity for the purposes
of the Companies Act, present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010, in
compliance with current statutory requirements, the governing
documents and the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) -
Accounting and Reporting by Charities issued in March 2005.

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS
Details of the registered office, trustees, principal officers and other
relevant information are given on page 2.

The Hallé Concerts Society is a company limited by guarantee
governed by its Articles of Association as amended and adopted by
Special Resolution on 26 October 2009. It is registered as a charity
with the Charity Commission. 

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
The Society’s Board of Trustees is responsible for its affairs and the
Chief Executive reports to the Board on behalf of the Management
and Staff. The Board consists of a maximum of 13 members
appointed as follows:

Elected: Nominated by ten members of the Society, unless
recommended by the Board

Nominated: Nominated by Manchester City Council (1) and AGMA
(2), appointed by the Board

The Board meets approximately 10 times a year to review strategy
and operational performance and to set operating plans and
budgets. Day to day management is delegated to the Chief
Executive.

The Board has three standing sub-committees with specific areas of
responsibility and which make recommendations to the Board:

• Audit Committee – responsible for overseeing the Society’s
financial reporting, external audit and reviewing the Society’s
internal control and risk management systems;

• Nominations and Remuneration Committee – responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
trustee bodies of the Society’s related trusts, having regard to the
balance and mix of skills required, and making recommendations to
the Board about any adjustments deemed necessary. Also for
setting procedure for recruitment of Board members and other
senior appointments, for recommending appointments to the
Board and setting the framework for remuneration of senior
appointments; and

• Investment Committee – responsible for overseeing the
investment portfolio of the Society and its related entities.

Other ad hoc sub-committees may also be formed to oversee special
projects and their terms of operation are agreed in advance by the
Board.

The members of the three standing committees are

Audit Committee
Bernard Knight (Chairman) *
Martin McMillan *
David Wertheim *
William Smith (co-optee)

Nominations and Remuneration Committee
Richard Bailey (Chairman) *
Carole Baume *
Bernard Knight *
David McKeith *

Investment Committee
Richard Bailey (Chairman) *
Val Hawkin
Christopher Hirst $
Edward Pysden $
Colin Smith $
Stephen Wood $

* Member of Hallé Board
$ Trustee of Hallé Endowment Trust

Trustees
All trustees are members of the Society, with the exception of the
Nominated trustees, and all trustees have an equal vote and have the
statutory duties and obligations of trustees.

All trustees who are members of the Society are guarantors of the
Society with a maximum liability of £5.

At each Annual General Meeting the two longest-serving elected
Trustees retire from office. If a trustee directly replaces another,
that trustee retires at the meeting at which the outgoing trustee
would have retired. In accordance with the Articles of Association
the following trustees retire by rotation and being eligible offer
themselves for re-election:

Richard Bailey David Wertheim  

The Company Secretary ensures that appropriate induction and
training is given to all Board members, for example updates on new
charity regulations are provided at trustee meetings. Each new
trustee is provided with a pack of information about the Hallé and
their responsibilities as trustees and is given an opportunity for
personal meetings with the Chairman and senior management of the
Society.

Structure of the Group
The Hallé Concerts Society Group consists of the Hallé Concerts
Society, its subsidiary Hallé Promotions Limited and three related
trusts: the Hallé Endowment Trust; the Charles Hallé Foundation and
the Hallé Concerts Society Sickness and Benevolent Fund, which are
aggregated on the basis that they represent branches of the Society. 

The Society also has a connected charity, the Terence Judd Trust
Fund, which was set up by his family, who still have an active interest
in its activities, in memory of the pianist, Terence Judd. The trust
funds periodic piano competitions and recitals. This connected
charity is not consolidated or aggregated, in accordance with SORP
(2005). 

Risk management and internal control
The trustees are responsible for ensuring that an effective system of
internal financial control is maintained and operated by the Society.

The system can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
that assets are safeguarded, transactions authorised and properly
recorded, and that material errors or irregularities are either
prevented or detected within a timely period.
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The system of internal financial control is based on a framework of
regular management information; administrative procedures,
including the segregation of duties; and a system of delegation and
accountability. 

In particular it includes:

• A comprehensive budgeting system, with a strategic plan and an
annual budget, which is reviewed and agreed by the trustees;

• Regular reviews by the trustees of periodic and annual financial
reports, which indicate financial performance against approved
budget and forecast;

• Clearly defined capital expenditure control guidelines; 
• A review by the Audit Committee of the comments made by the

external auditors in their management letter and other reports;
and

• Procedures for monitoring progress against the strategic plan.

As part of the monitoring process, the trustees have implemented a
risk management strategy, which comprises:

• Regular review by Management and an annual review by the Board
of the risks which the Society may face and actions taken to
mitigate identified risks (last review completed in May 2010);

• The establishment of systems and procedures to mitigate those
risks identified; and

• The implementation of procedures designed to minimise any
potential impact on the charity should any of those risks
materialise.

The trustees consider the major risks facing the Society are:

• Uncertainty created by the current economic climate;
• Pressure on public funding;
• An inability to maintain artistic momentum;
• Increased competition for support from sponsors, trusts and

foundations and individual givers; and
• Underfunding of the Hallé Concerts Society Retirement Benefit

Scheme, which was closed to future benefit accrual in July 2006.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES OF THE SOCIETY
The object of the Society, as stated in its Articles, is to promote the
study, practice and knowledge of the art of music in the United
Kingdom and elsewhere by the giving and arrangement of concerts,
and other such means as is thought fit including, without limitation,
performances of the Hallé Orchestra at the Bridgewater Hall,
Manchester for the benefit of the public generally. Its mission is to
be one of the World’s most important symphony orchestras and to
make a distinctive contribution to promoting Manchester as a
significant European cultural centre.

The Society’s strategy to achieve its charitable objectives is to
undertake the following major activities:

• promoting concerts by the Orchestra and by other artists and
ensembles in Manchester as the principal resident orchestra at the
Bridgewater Hall, performing a wide range of music for diverse
audiences including concerts for schools and family concerts; 

• performing concerts throughout the United Kingdom including
residencies in Nottingham and Sheffield, appearances at major
arts festivals such as the BBC Proms and Edinburgh together with
regular engagements in Leeds, Bradford, Derby, Hanley, Lincoln
and others;

• concert performances overseas in association with local
promoters, acting as a cultural ambassador for the Manchester

City region; 
• the production of highly acclaimed recordings issued on the Hallé’s

own label;
• regular broadcasts for radio, television, the internet and other

digital media;
• an extensive and award-winning education programme in Greater

Manchester and elsewhere working with over 35,000 children and
young people;

• running the Hallé Choir, an unpaid chorus of around 150 singers,
together with the Hallé Youth Orchestra and Choir and Hallé
Children’s Choir which all perform both individually to combined
audiences of around 20,000 people as well as with the Hallé
Orchestra and other ensembles.

Public Benefit
In shaping the objectives for the year and planning the Society’s
activities, the trustees have considered the Charity Commission’s
guidance on public benefit, including the guidance on public benefit
and fee charging. The Society relies on grants, donations,
sponsorship, engagement fees and income from sale of tickets to
cover its operating costs. In setting the level of ticket prices and
concessions, the trustees give careful consideration to the
accessibility of the Hallé to those on low incomes and with special
needs. A special scheme for students provides them with access to
heavily discounted tickets.

Schemes are in place to encourage attendance from those who
would not ordinarily have access to concerts. Over the past year the
Hallé and AGMA have been piloting a scheme which encourages
people who would never otherwise be able to attend Hallé concerts,
to do so for the first time. The Hallé offers free tickets and
programmes, as well as advice and support. Nearly 500 people have
now attended from a number of different authorities, with more
groups planned for future concerts. 

Charges for Education and Outreach work also have regard to
ensuring those activities are accessible to widest possible
community, whatever their means. Membership of the youth and
children’s ensembles is free and, with the generous aid of our
supporters, bursaries are available to help the less well-off members.

ACHIEVEMENTS, PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
The Group’s accounts have been prepared in accordance with
Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) issued in March 2005.

The Statements of Financial Activities for the Group and the Society
are set out on pages 15 and 16 and the consolidated and aggregated
summary income and expenditure of the Group is given on page 14.
A full review of the Society’s activities and achievements is set out
in the Chairman’s Statement and the Chief Executive’s Review of the
Year, which has been approved by the trustees. 

Overall financial review
The group had total net incoming resources of £217,000 (2009:
outgoing resources of £287,000) before gains on investment assets
and the actuarial loss on the closed defined benefit pension scheme.
The group generated a surplus on unrestricted funds for the year of
£212,000 (2009: deficit £184,000), leaving an accumulated surplus
on unrestricted funds before the pension liability of £27,000 (2009:
deficit of £185,000). The pension cost accounted for through the
income and expenditure account under the rules of FRS 17 increased
from £182,000 to £349,000.
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Overall financial review (continued) 

The results for the year were helped by the award from the Arts
Council’s ‘Sustain’ fund referred to below, which has assisted the
Society to mitigate the effects of the recession on ticket sales and
corporate support and to support the artistic programme.

The balance on all the group’s funds before the pension scheme
liability stood at £4.5m (2009: £4.2m).

The Society’s key financial objective is to ensure financial stability
and continued solvency year on year so it can pursue its artistic aims
and objectives. 

The Society’s forecasts and projections show that, taking account of
reasonably possible changes in income, the Society will be able to
meet all its liabilities as they fall due and the deficit on unrestricted
funds of the Society is not a cause for concern for the short to
medium term. This situation has been helped by the Arts Council’s
Sustain award and is underpinned by the commitment of the
Custodians of the Hallé 2058 Foundation, that while they have the
assets to do so, they will endeavour to ensure the Society is a going
concern.

After making enquiries and having considered current cash
resources and the availability of reserves within the Society, as well
as modelling different potential future funding scenarios, the
trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Society and the
Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the annual report and financial
statements.

Income
The performances at the Bridgewater Hall achieved a paid capacity
of 69% across the year as a whole, the same as last year. The
Society’s pricing policy reflects its commitment to make its work
accessible to all members of the community, whatever their means,
and offers concessions and discounts to appropriate groups. During
the year a number of schemes have been run in conjunction with
local authorities to offer free tickets to disadvantaged groups who
would not normally attend concerts. 

Two foreign tours, with four concerts in Spain and two in Germany,
were undertaken during the financial year.

Revenue funding from Arts Council England increased by 2.7% to
£2,178,000. AGMA funding increased by £100,000 plus inflation to
£813,200 and Manchester City Council increased its grant by
£56,000 plus inflation in recognition of the anticipated increase in
the Hallé’s costs of residency at the Bridgewater Hall.

In addition to this regular funding, £15,000 was received from the
Department for Children, Schools and Families for the final stage of
North West Music Partnership project, which the Hallé was co-
ordinating. In addition further funding was received for the Sing Up
Flagship project and acting as Area Leader for the Sing Up
programme. Sing Up is a government-funded initiative co-ordinated
through Youth Music to develop singing in primary schools.
Additional funding was also received for the Harmony Youth
Orchestra described in more detail in the Chief Executive’s review.

An award from the Arts Council as part of its Lifelong Learning
initiative assisted an audience development initiative working with
Manchester City Council to give groups of older people their first
experience of concert going with free tickets and other support.

As reported last year, an award of £470,000 was received from the
Arts Council’s ‘Sustain’ fund to support box office and fundraising
projections through 2009/10 and 2010/11 together with £130,000
to support the purchase of a new orchestra van. A further
£200,000 was awarded to support the organisation’s costs relating
to maintaining a high calibre artistic programme through 2009/10
and 2010/11.

Total incoming resources amounted to £8.6m (2009: £7.8m).

Expenditure
A full analysis of expenditure on charitable activity is given in note
5. Total resources expended amounted to £8.4m (2009: £8.1m). 

Expenditure on the North West Music Partnership project and the
various Sing Up project strands together with the Hallé Ensembles
is included in Educational and Outreach activity.

Subsidiary and Branches
The Society’s wholly owned subsidiary, Hallé Promotions Limited,
carries out non-charitable trading activities for the Society including
programme advertising. The company realised a profit on trading of
£1,000 which was paid to the Society under gift aid (2009: loss of
£2,000), which together with retained profits brought forward gave
retained profits carried forward of £4,000.

The Hallé Concerts Society Sickness and Benevolent Fund, which
is a charity linked by a Charity Commission Uniting Direction holds
investments, which, at the discretion of the Society, may be applied
to assist employees of the Society who are in temporary distress
through poverty or sickness. The income from this fund has
traditionally been used to meet the costs of physiotherapy treatment
and similar expenses. In the year this Fund received investment
income and bank interest of £14,000 (2009: £15,000) and paid
beneficiaries £12,000 (2009: £11,000). Funds from the Sickness
and Benevolent Fund are treated as restricted funds for the
purposes of the aggregated Statement of Financial Activities.

Fundraising
A brief review of the activities of the Charles Hallé Foundation and
the Hallé Endowment Trust, which raise funds in support of the
Society’s activities, and which are both separately constituted
charities with their own trustee bodies, is set out below.

The Charles Hallé Foundation holds funds raised from public
donation and fundraising events. These funds are applied, at the
discretion of the Foundation trustees, to fund projects by the
Society, which would not otherwise be funded from core grant
income. In the year the Charles Hallé Foundation received £221,000
in donations and legacies (2009: £237,000), raised £29,000 (2009
(the 150th anniversary year): £52,000) net through fundraising
events and received £1,000 (2009: £7,000) bank interest. Funds of
£248,000 (2009: £313,000) were transferred to the Society to
support educational and other projects. 

The Hallé Endowment Trust holds long-term investments, the
income from which is available to the Society, at the discretion of the
Endowment trustees, to further the education of the general public
in the study, appreciation and practice of music and the allied arts
through supporting the activities of the Society. 

During the year the Hallé Endowment Trust received restricted
income of £175,000 (2009: £179,000), and £170,000 was
transferred to the Society (2009: £170,000).  In addition the Trust
received donations and legacies of £37,000 (2009: £12,000), which
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were added to the capital of the Endowment which stood at £3.0m
at 31 December 2009.

The Hallé 2058 Foundation was set up during the 150th
anniversary year in 2008 as the main focus for fundraising. During
the last year the trustees resolved that all the funds currently held
by the Hallé Orchestra Public Appeal (the Hallé Appeal) and any
funds which the Appeal shall receive in future should be transferred
to the Hallé 2058 Foundation which was set up with similar
objectives to the Appeal. 

The 2058 Foundation funds are administered by a panel of
Custodians and are treated as restricted funds for the purposes of
the Statement of Financial Activities. The fund supplements the core
funding of the Society by supporting the following objectives. 

The combined fund will strive to support the Society’s artistic and
educational programmes and initiatives such as the Hallé’s Youth
and outreach activities including, inter alia, the Hallé Youth
Orchestra, Hallé Youth and children’s Choirs and the Hallé Assistant
Conductor programmes together with any new initiatives and
developments in this area.

It also aims to:

• support both the Hallé international touring and its recording
programmes thus furthering the Hallé’s worldwide reputation;

• commission the writing of new work;
• assist in the purchase of musical instruments or other specialist

equipment; and
• support any collaborative projects with other artistic institutions in

the field of promotion of education and music.

During the year the combined funds received donations of £190,000
(2009: £284,000). 

Investment Policy
An Investment sub-committee reviews the investment strategy and
performance of the Society and its related entities. The management
of the group’s investment portfolios is vested in Cazenove Capital
Management Ltd. and the following investment policies and
strategic asset allocations have been adopted by the trustees of the
individual trusts. During the year, the Investment Committee agreed
that Cazenove should be given discretion to act within certain
benchmark ranges for asset allocation for all portfolios except the
Hallé Endowment Trust. 

The investment policy for the Hallé Endowment Trust is to maximise
income. The policy of the other funds is to balance income with
capital growth. The following strategic asset allocations have been
adopted.

Hallé Concerts Society: 40% UK bonds (30%-50%), 50% UK
equities (40%-60%), 10% Hedge funds (0%-10%) 

Hallé Concerts Society Sickness and Benevolent Fund: 40% UK
bonds (30%-50%), 50% UK equities (40%-60%), 10% Hedge funds
(0%-10%)

Hallé Endowment Trust: investments are predominantly in the
Cazenove Income Trust for Charities (UK bonds), 

M & G Securities Charibond Income fund (UK bonds) and in
permanent interest bearing securities. However, the trustees’
gradual long term objective is to achieve greater diversification
across different asset classes. Upon receipt of new funds or
proceeds/realisations from maturing bonds, advice will be sought

from investment managers as to how this might be achieved,
provided the income requirement remains predominant.

With the exception of the Endowment Trust, investments are
predominantly in Common Investment Funds. Each asset class is
measured against the appropriate market indices for performance
purposes. In the case of UK bonds this is the FTSE All Stocks index,
for equities, the FTSE All Share and Hedge Funds are measured
against 7 day LIBOR.

The Hedge funds referred to above are all investments in the
Cazenove Absolute Return Trust for Charities.

There are no restrictions on the trustees’ power to invest and the
trustees have not adopted an ethical investment policy.

Reserves
The trustees have reviewed the reserves of the Group and of the
Society, which are detailed in notes 8 to 10. The trustees’ policy in
relation to reserves is to ensure that the Society holds sufficient
funds to maintain liquidity, to cover unforeseen short-term
emergency cash requirements. 

As reported in previous years, the recognition of the defined benefit
scheme pension liability under FRS 17 clearly has a major impact on
the reported unrestricted reserves of the Group and the Society. This
liability is updated annually to reflect market conditions and other
actuarial assumptions. The liability at 31 March 2010 was calculated
as £5,656,000 (2009: £4,186,000). Although this is significant, it
does not mean that an immediate liability for this amount
crystallises, and does not have an immediate cash flow impact on the
charity. 

The most recent actuarial valuation was carried out as of 31 March
2008. Valuations are undertaken every three years and the next
triennial actuarial valuation will be as of 31 March 2011. Following
the latest valuation, in negotiation with the trustees of the pension
fund and following professional advice, the Society has agreed a
recovery plan with the trustees to repay the Scheme deficit over a
period of 24 years. This recovery plan aims to ensure that shortfall
is eliminated by March 2033 and the benefits accrued by members
of the Scheme are secure.

Unrestricted fund balances at 31 March 2010, excluding the pension
liability, showed an accumulated surplus of £27,000 (2009: deficit
of £185,000) and there were no free reserves. Although the trustees
are content that taking account of the level of grants receivable and
the requirement each year to match income and expenditure and
avoid accumulating a deficit, the future cash flow projections enable
the Group to meets its obligations as they fall due, the trustees
consider it important that a higher level of free reserves be built up.
The Sustain grant has been invaluable in helping the Society cope
with income uncertainties arising from the current economic climate
but the Trustees are resolved that the Society must balance its
income and expenditure on an ongoing basis longer-term and plans
are in place to implement cost cutting measures should those prove
necessary, where possible without compromising artistic quality.

The Group and the Society have a number of restricted funds the
purpose of which is detailed in note 9 to the financial statements
and these funds supplement the core income of the Society by
supporting developmental activity in accordance with the purposes
for which they were gifted.

T
R

U
S

T
E

E
S

’ R
E

P
O

R
T



12

T
R

U
S

T
E

E
S

’ R
E

P
O

R
T PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS

A major concern for the trustees is the Society’s ongoing financial
sustainability given the current uncertain economic climate and
decisions over public funding. The outcome of the comprehensive
spending review is unlikely to be known until October, but
announcements made under the emergency budget suggest that the
Society may well face a difficult period going forward. The Chief
Executive’s Review of the Year refers to the half percent cut in our
grant for 2010/11 recently announced and the government has
clearly set out its intention to reduce public expenditure across the
board over the next four years. The trustees are developing plans to
be implemented in the light of forthcoming funding decisions,
recognising that it is vital that the Hallé continues to present an
exciting and stimulating artistic programme.

The 2010/11 season is varied and ambitious with a full programme
of concerts in the Bridgewater Hall and touring engagements in the
UK. We are already in discussion with a number of partners about
exciting projects for the following year.

Our education programme will continue to work closely with Greater
Manchester’s music services and with individual schools and
community groups to reach children, young people and
disadvantaged groups across the region. In addition we will further
develop the Hallé youth and children’s ensembles and the work of the
Hallé Choir described in more detail in the Chief Executive’s review
of the year.

Our Knowledge Transfer Partnership project in association with the
Open University is developing our use of new digital media to give
wider access to our activities, develop deeper engagement with our
current supporters and to reach new ones.

We will also continue to explore possibilities for our long-held
ambition to deliver a dedicated rehearsal and education centre for
the Orchestra, although we recognise the difficulties of achieving
this in the current uncertain financial climate.

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE TRUSTEES OF
THE HALLÉ CONCERTS SOCIETY IN RESPECT OF THE
TRUSTEES’ ANNUAL REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Annual
Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements
for each financial year. Under that law they are required to prepare
the group and parent company financial statements in accordance
with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

Under company law the trustees must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the group and charitable company and
of the group’s excess of income over expenditure for that period. In
preparing each of the group and charitable company financial
statements, the trustees are required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently; 

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been

followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and

explained in the financial statements; and 
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless

it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the charitable
company will continue its activities. 

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable
them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They have general responsibility for taking
such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets
of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information included on the charitable
company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions.

Disclosure of information to independent auditors
The trustees who held office at the date of approval of this trustees’
report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware; and each trustee has taken all the steps that they ought to
have taken as a trustee to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are
aware of that information.

Auditors
In accordance with Section 485 of the Companies Act 2006, a
resolution for the reappointment of KPMG LLP as auditors of the
Charitable Company will be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting, together with a resolution empowering the trustees to fix
their remuneration.

By Order of the Board

John Summers

Company Secretary

8 September 2010



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO HALLÉ CONCERTS
SOCIETY (‘THE CHARITY’)

St James’ Square
Manchester M2 6DS

We have examined the summarised consolidated and aggregated
financial statements of Hallé Concerts Society and its subsidiary and
related trusts for the year ended 31 March 2010, which comprise
the Summary consolidated and aggregated statement of financial
activities, the Summary consolidated and aggregated and charity
balance sheets, and the Summarised consolidated and aggregated
cash flow statement and the related notes set out on pages 14 to 24
which are contained within the charity’s non-statutory summarised
annual report. The summarised financial statements are non-
statutory accounts prepared for the purpose of inclusion in the
summarised annual report.

This statement is made, on terms that have been agreed with the
charity, solely to the charity, in order to meet the requirements of
Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended
Practice (revised 2005). Our work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the charity those matters we have agreed to state to
it in such a statement and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the charity for our work, for this statement, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditors
The board of trustees has accepted responsibility for the preparation
of the summarised consolidated and aggregated financial
statements.

Our responsibility is to report to the charity our opinion on the
consistency of the summarised consolidated and aggregated
financial statements on pages 14 to 24 in the summarised annual
report with the full statutory annual financial statements.

We also read the other information contained within the
summarised annual report and consider the implications for our
report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with the summarised financial statements.

Basis of opinion
We conducted our work having regard to Bulletin 2008/3, the
auditor’s statement on the summary financial statement in the
United Kingdom issued by the Auditing Practices Board. Our report
on the Charity’s full statutory annual financial statements describe
the basis of our audit opinion on those financial statements.

13

Opinion
In our opinion, the summarised financial statements set out on
pages 14 to 24 are consistent with the full statutory annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2010.

We have not considered the effects of any events between the date
on which we signed our report on the full statutory annual financial
statements (8 September 2010) and the date of this statement.

Stephen Dunn (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
St James’ Square
Manchester
M2 6DS

8 September 2010
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CONSOLIDATED AND AGGREGATED SUMMARY INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Gross income from charitable operations 8,613 7,834
Non-charitable trading activities: net deficit 1 (2)

Total income from continuing operations 8,614 7,832

Total expenditure for continuing operations (8,083) (7,948)

Surplus/(deficit) on ordinary activities for the year before transfers and asset disposals 531 (116)

(Loss)/gain on disposal of investments (2) 113

Net income/(expenditure) before interest and charges 529 (3)

Finance cost of defined benefit pension scheme (349) (182)

Net income/(expenditure) after interest and charges 180 (185)

Transfer from endowment funds 8 56

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year 188 (129)

Dealt with by:
The Society 189 (128)

Subsidiary company and related trusts (1) (1)

188 (129)

• Total income comprises £7,954k, net of the income of the trading subsidiary, for unrestricted funds and £659k for restricted funds. A
detailed analysis of income and expenditure is provided in the Statement of Financial Activities on page 15.

• Income and expenditure totals are shown after eliminating inter-group transactions.

• Turnover of non-charitable trading activities amounted to £12,000.  

• A detailed analysis of expenditure is provided in the Statement of Financial Activities and notes 4 and 5.

• The Group had no recognised gains or losses other than the surplus/(deficit) in both the current and preceding years and the movements
in other recognised gains and losses as shown in the Statement of Financial Activities.

• In both the current and preceding years the surplus/(deficit) calculated on an historical cost basis is not materially different from the
reported results as above.

• The Summary Income and Expenditure Account is derived from the Statement of Financial Activities on page 15 which, together with the
notes to the accounts on pages 19 to 24, provides full information on the movements during the year on all funds of the Group.

• During the year, the Group has neither discontinued any of its operations nor acquired any new ones.

The notes on pages 19 to 24 form part of these accounts.
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CONSOLIDATED AND AGGREGATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010

Note Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total
Funds Funds Funds
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Incoming resources
Incoming resources from generated funds:

Voluntary income 1 4,359 462 37 4,858 4,149
Activities for generating funds 2 342 4 - 346 418
Investment income 5 193 - 198 245

Incoming resources from charitable activities 3 3,260 - - 3,260 3,043

Total incoming resources 7,966 659 37 8,662 7,855

Resources expended
Costs of generating funds:
Costs of generating voluntary income 4 335 - - 335 392
Fundraising Trading: costs of goods sold and other costs 11 - - 11 11
Investment management expenses - 7 - 7 6

Charitable activities 5 7,637 391 - 8,028 7,671

Governance costs 60 4 - 64 62

Total resources expended 8,043 402 - 8,445 8,142

Net incoming/(outgoing) resources before transfers (77) 257 37 217 (287)

Transfers between funds 9 180 (172) (8) - -
Net incoming/(outgoing) resources before 
other recognised gains and losses 103 85 29 217 (287)
Other recognised gains and losses
Gains/(losses) on investment assets 10 44 (46) 8 (276)
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme (1,371) - - (1,371) (671)

Net movement of funds (1,258) 129 (17) (1,146) (1,234)

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward at 1 April (4,371) 1,374 3,014 17 1,251

Total funds carried forward at 31 March (5,629) 1,503 2,997 (1,129) 17

All incoming and outgoing resources derive from continuing operations. The Group has no gains and losses other than those recognised in
this Statement of Financial Activities.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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CHARITABLE COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010

Note Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total
Funds Funds Funds
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Incoming resources
Incoming resources from generated funds:

Voluntary income 1 4,565 453 - 5,018 4,382
Activities for generating funds 2 266 4 - 270 274
Investment income 4 3 - 7 43

Incoming resources from charitable activities 3 3,260 - - 3,260 3,043

Total incoming resources 8,095 460 - 8,555 7,742

Resources expended
Costs of generating funds:
Costs of generating voluntary income 4 299 - - 299 311

Charitable activities 5 7,630 376 - 8,006 7,650

Governance costs 60 1 - 61 60

Total resources expended 7,989 377 - 8,366 8,021

Net incoming/(outgoing) resources before 
other recognised gains and losses 106 83 - 189 (279)
Other recognised gains and losses
Gains on investment assets 10 - - 10 133
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme (1,371) - - (1,371) (671)

Net movement of funds (1,255) 83 - (1,172) (817)

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward at 1 April (4,414) 1,063 42 (3,309) (2,492)

Total funds carried forward at 31 March (5,669) 1,146 42 (4,481) (3,309)
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CONSOLIDATED AND AGGREGATED AND CHARITABLE COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
AT 31 MARCH 2010

Notes Group Group Company Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

£’000 £’000 £’000    £’000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 240 270 120 145
Investments 3,196 3,133 65 55

3,436 3,403 185 200
Current assets
Stocks 3 3 3 3
Debtors 1,277 1,256 1,622 1,394
Cash at bank and in hand 1,240 817 786 550

2,520 2,076 2,411 1,947
Liabilities:

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (1,428) (1,274) (1,420) (1,268)

Net current assets 1,092 802 991 679

Total assets less current liabilities 4,528 4,205 1,176 879

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (1) (2) (1) (2)

Total assets less liabilities excluding pension liability 4,527 4,203 1,175 877
Pension liability (5,656) (4,186) (5,656) (4,186)

Total assets less liabilities including pension liability (1,129) 17 (4,481) (3,309)

Capital funds Endowments 8 2,997 3,014 42 42

Income funds Restricted funds 9 1,503 1,374 1,146 1,063

Unrestricted funds:
Non-charitable funds 5 5 - -
Other charitable funds 22 (190) (13) (228)
Pension reserve (5,656) (4,186) (5,656) (4,186)

10 (5,629) (4,371) (5,669) (4,414)

Total Funds (1,129) 17 (4,481) (3,309)

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on 8 September 2010 and signed on its behalf by

David McKeith
Chairman

Bernard Knight
Chair of Audit Committee  
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CONSOLIDATED AND AGGREGATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 288 (963)
Return on investments and servicing of finance 198 245
Capital expenditure and financial investment (63) 150

Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year 423 (568)

Notes to the group cash flow statement
2010 2009

£’000 £’000
Reconciliation of net incoming resources to net cash outflow from operating activities
Net incoming/(outgoing) resources 217 (287)
Depreciation charge 37 42
Increase in debtors (21) (309)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 154 (222)
Increase in pension fund liability 99 58
Interest received (5) (49)
Investment income (193) (196)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 288 (963)

Return on investments and servicing finance
Interest received 5 49
Dividends received 193 196

Net cash inflow from returns on investments 198 245

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets (6) (12)
Payments to acquire fixed asset investments (417) (800)
Receipts from sales of fixed asset investments 360 962

Net (outflow)/inflow from capital expenditure and financial investment (63) 150

Reconciliation of net cash flows to movement in net funds
Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year 423 (568)
Net funds at 1 April 817 1,385

Net funds at 31 March 1,240 817

Analysis of changes in net funds

At 1 April Cash flow At 31 March
2009 2010

£’000 £’000 £’000

Cash in hand and at bank 817 423 1,240
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS)

1. Voluntary income
Group Group Company Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

£’000 £’000 £’000    £’000
Grants receivable
Revenue grants receivable:
Arts Council England 2,178 2,120 2,178 2,120
Association of Greater Manchester Authorities 813 693 813 693
Manchester City Council 394 332 394 332

3,385 3,145 3,385 3,145
Project grants receivable
North West Music Partnership 15 185 15 185
Sing Up Area Leader 53 46 53 46
Sing Up Flagship 25 50 25 50
Harmony Youth Orchestra 26 94 26 94

Other grants receivable:
Arts Council England Learning Revolution 12 - 12 -
Arts Council England Sustain award 800 - 800 -

Total grants receivable 4,316 3,520 4,316 3,520

Donations and similar income
Hallé Endowment Trust 37 12 170 170
Charles Hallé Foundation 221 238 248 313
Terence Judd Trust Fund 3 3 3 3
Fundraising donations and legacies 43 38 43 38
Hallé Appeal/2058 Foundation 190 35 190 284
Membership subscriptions 48 54 48 54

Total donations and similar income 542 629 702 862

Total voluntary income 4,858 4,149 5,018 4,382

2. Activities for generating funds
Group Group Company Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

£’000 £’000 £’000    £’000   
Sponsorship and other income
Corporate sponsorship 180 238 180 238
Fundraising events 64 135 - -
Other income 90 36 90 36

334 409 270 274

Commercial trading operations 12 9 - -

Total activities for generating funds 346 418 270 274
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3. Incoming resources from charitable activities
Group Group

and and 
Company Company

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Orchestral concerts and related work:
Box office income (Manchester promotions) 1,685 1,698
Engagement income 968 746
Overseas touring 180 213
Broadcasts, recordings and other income 173 129

3,006 2,786
Education and Outreach 254 257

3,260 3,043

4. Costs of generating voluntary income  - fundraising
Group Group Company Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

£’000 £’000 £’000    £’000   
Fundraising salary & administration costs 241 225 241 225
Campaign & event costs 35 113 - 32
Allocated support costs 59 54 58 54

335 392 299 311

5. Costs of charitable activity 
Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total

Funds Funds Funds
Group 2010 2010 2010 2010 2009

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Orchestral concerts and related work
Orchestra, related staff and other costs 4,137 - - 4,137 3,895
Conductors and soloists 762 - - 762 701
Augmenting extra players 167 - - 167 107
Overseas tours 170 - - 170 363
Travel and subsistence 170 - - 170 113
Hall hire 561 - - 561 562
Sundry concert costs 105 - - 105 52
Music and instrument hire 47 - - 47 42
Recording costs 26 - - 26 99
Marketing 360 12 - 372 355
Box office charges 148 - - 148 148
Programme costs 58 - - 58 55
Depreciation 19 18 - 37 41
Support costs 444 - - 444 404

7,174 30 - 7,204 6,937
Education and Outreach
Direct Education costs 234 - - 234 309
Special projects - 240 - 240 183
Choir, Youth Orchestra, Youth Choir and Children’s Choir 170 11 - 181 168
Harmony Youth Orchestra - 98 - 98 9
Support costs 59 - - 59 54

463 349 - 812 723

Payments to beneficiaries - 12 - 12 11

Total charitable expenditure 7,637 391 - 8,028 7,671
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Costs of charitable activity (continued) 
Special Education and Outreach projects comprise the North West Music Partnership project undertaken in conjunction with Manchester,
Salford, Bolton and Stockport music services funded by the Department for Children, Schools and Families and Sing Up projects funded by
Youth Music through Sing Up.

Charitable expenditure for the Company is the same as that for the Group with the exception of depreciation £35,000 (2009: £42,000),
payments to beneficiaries and support costs, which are analysed in note 6.

6. Analysis of support costs
Orchestral Education Fundraising Governance Total Total

work
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2009

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Group
Management and Finance 307 41 41 20 409 347
Office and sundry operational costs 137 18 18 10 183 191
Professional and consultancy fees - - - 34 34 35

444 59 59 64 626 573

Company
Management and Finance 308 41 41 21 411 347
Office and sundry operational costs 133 17 17 8 175 188
Professional and consultancy fees - - - 32 32 32

441 58 58 61 618 567

7(a). Staff numbers and costs
The average number of full-time equivalent employees during the year, analysed by category, was as follows:

Group and Group and 
Company Company

2010 2009
Number Number

Orchestral musicians 76 77
Administrative and other non-playing personnel 31 30

107 107

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
Group and Group and  
Company Company

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Salaries and fees 3,334 3,231
Employers’ National Insurance contributions 341 337
Employers’ stakeholder pension contributions 210 205
FRS 17 pension cost 349 182

4,234 3,955
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7(b). Remuneration of trustees and employees
The Trustees receive no remuneration nor reimbursement of expenses and derive no financial benefit from their services to the Society. The
number of employees whose emoluments (salaries, benefits in kind and pension contributions) amounted to more than £60,000 during the
year was as follows:

2010 2009
Number Number

£60,000-£70,000 1 -
£90,000-£100,000 1 1

The employers’ contribution to the Hallé stakeholder pension plan for the above employee was £6,000 (2009: £6,000).

8. Analysis of Endowment Funds
Group Company
£’000 £’000

As at 1 April 2009 3,014 42
Incoming resources 37 -
Net losses on investments (46) -
Transfers to restricted funds (8) -
As at 31 March 2010

2,997 42

Endowments amounting to £42,000 (2007: £42,000) represent the amounts received from members under Article 10 of the Articles of
Association.

Funds held in the Hallé Endowment Trust are in respect of public donations received. All endowment funds are in respect of permanent
endowments.

9. Analysis of restricted funds 
At 31 March Income Expenditure Investment Transfers At 31 March

2009 losses 2010
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group
Fixed asset reserves 78 - (11) - - 67
Sustain re van - 130 - - - 130
North West Music Partnership 138 15 (153) - - -
Sing Up Area Leader 6 53 (43) - - 16
Sing Up Hearts & Minds 3 - (3) - - -
Sing Up Flagship 15 25 (40) - - -
Harmony Youth Orchestra 85 30 (98) - - 17
Hallé 2058 Foundation 382 196 (15) - 354 917
Appeal Fund 354 - - - (354) -
Sickness & Benevolent Fund 265 14 (13) 47 - 313
Charles Hallé Restricted Funds 24 21 (11) (1) (10) 23
Hallé Endowment Trust 24 175 (15) (2) (162) 20

1,374 659 (402) 44 (172) 1,503
Company
Fixed asset reserves 80 - (11) - - 69
Sustain re van - 130 - - - 130
North West Music Partnership 138 15 (153) - - -
Sing Up Area Leader 6 53 (43) - - 16
Sing Up Hearts & Minds 3 - (3) - - -
Sing Up Flagship 15 25 (40) - - -
Harmony Youth Orchestra 85 30 (101) - - 14
Hallé 2058 Foundation 382 196 (15) - 354 917
Appeal Fund 354 - - - (354) -
Education & outreach - 11 (11) - - -

1,063 460 (377) - - 1,146
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The fixed asset reserves represent monies provided for capital expenditure which are transferred to the income and expenditure account over
the useful life of the assets purchased.  

The Sustain fund was received from Arts Council England to fund the purchase of a new instrument van.

The North West Music Partnership Fund represents monies received from the DCSF for the Partnership project with Greater Manchester
Music Services for which the Hallé was acting as co-ordinator.

Sing Up funds represent monies received from Youth Music in support of the Sing Up programmes administered by the Hallé on behalf its
project partners. 

The Sickness and Benevolent Fund and Hallé Endowment Trust funds represents donations and investments held for the restricted
distributable purposes of those trusts.  

The Hallé 2058 Foundation Funds represent monies received in support of the fundraising effort for the Hallé’s 150th birthday combined with
the funds raised by the Hallé Public Appeal. The funds are administered by an independent panel of Custodians and support was given to a
number of education and outreach initiatives during the year.

The Education and outreach funds represent funds received from the Charles Hallé Foundation in support of specific educational and outreach
projects.

The Charles Hallé Foundation restricted funds represent funds received from a variety of donors for specific educational and outreach
projects.  Funds include gifts of shares in companies listed on the Alternative Investment Market, which must be held for a minimum of two
years. These are accounted for in restricted funds until that condition is satisfied. Full details of those funds are disclosed in the accounts of
the Charles Hallé Foundation. 

The following transfers were made in the year to/(from) restricted funds:
£’000

Transfer to Society from Hallé Endowment Trust (170)
Transfer to restricted funds from the capital of the Hallé Endowment Trust 8
Transfer from restricted to unrestricted reserves of the Charles Hallé Foundation (10)

(172)

The transfer from restricted reserves of the Charles Hallé Foundation follows the lifting on the restriction on disposal of AIM listed shares
and their realisation. The disposal proceeds were therefore transferred by the trustees to unrestricted funds.

10. Analysis of unrestricted funds
Group Company
£’000 £’000

General funds (excluding pension liability) At 1 April 2009 (185) (228)
Surplus for the year before FRS 17 pension costs 113 116
Pension deficit contribution (250) (250)
FRS 17 pension cost 349 349
Movement for the year 212 215

General funds at 31 March 2010 27 (13)

Pension Liability
At 1 April 2009 (4,186) (4,186)
Contributions 250 250
FRS 17 pension  cost (349) (349)
Actuarial losses (1,371) (1,371)

At 31 March 2010 (5,656) (5,656)

Total unrestricted funds
At 1 April 2009 (4,371) (4,414)
Deficit for the year (1,258) (1,255)

At 31 March 2010 (5,629) (5,669)
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11. Pensions
During the year the Society contributed to a contributory defined contribution (Stakeholder) scheme for its employees which is operated by
Standard Life. Employees joining the stakeholder pension contract directly with Standard Life. The Society makes an employer contribution
of 7% of salary to this scheme and just acts as agent in collecting and paying over employee pension contributions. The pension cost charge
for the current year was £210,000 (2009: £207,000).

The Company also paid deficit removal contributions to the closed defined benefit pension scheme detailed below. The following information
relates to the group and the company.

Defined benefit pension scheme
The Society’s defined benefit pension scheme (the Hallé Concerts Society Retirement Benefits Scheme) which provided benefits based on
final pensionable salary, was closed to future accrual of benefits from 1 July 2006. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those
of the Society in a trustee-administered fund. The full actuarial valuation at 31 March 2008 showed a deficit of £5.3m on the Trustees’
funding basis. 

From 1 April 2009, following detailed negotiations with the trustees of the pension scheme, the Society is paying contributions of £250,000
a year increasing annually by the increase in National Average Earnings. The shortfall is planned to be eliminated by 31 March 2033. The
Society expects to contribute £253,500 to the Scheme in the 2010/11 financial year.
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Manchester City Council
The Manchester College
Manchester Music Service
Northern Ballet School
North West Music Partnership

(Bolton, Manchester, Salford,
Stockport and Wigan Music
Services)

Nottingham City Council
Nottingham County Council
Oldham Music Service
Pendine Park Care Homes
Peter Cunningham Memorial

Fund
Peter Worrell
Rochdale Music Service
Rochdale Youth Offending Team
Royal Northern College of Music
Salford Business Education

Partnership
Salford Music and Performing

Arts Service
Sing Up
Stockport College
Stockport Music Service
Tameside Music Support Service
Trafford Music Service
University of Manchester
Warrington Music Service
Wigan Instrumental Teaching

Service
Youth Music

GENERAL SPONSORS
Barbirolli
The Business Network (North) 
Charles Roe Ltd
Floreat Ltd
Granthams of Alderley Edge 
Jurys Manchester Inn 
Kickworldwide
The Lowry Hotel 
Manchester Evening News 
Odgers Berndtson
The Olive Press
Radisson Edwardian
Reserve Wines 
teneight photography

MEMBERS’ SPONSORS
Forsyth Bros Ltd
Oddbins
Stuart Jones Styling Opticians
Venus

CORPORATE MEMBERS
GOLD CORPORATE

MEMBERS
Brother (UK) Ltd
C&O Wines Ltd
Carole and Fred Nash
Edmundson Electrical Ltd
Endress+Hauser Ltd
Eversheds LLP
Laing O'Rourke Northern Ltd
Manchester Airport
N M Rothschild & Sons Ltd
Oaklands Hospital (Ramsay

Healthcare UK)
Piggott & Whitfield Ltd

SILVER CORPORATE
MEMBERS

Addleshaw Goddard
Beaverbrooks The Jewellers Ltd
Bruntwood 
CDL 
Hammonds LLP
The Lowry Hotel
The Manchester Grammar

School
NatWest
Premex Services Ltd
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Wrengate Ltd
Zig Zag (GB) plc

EXECUTIVE MEMBERS
The Audio Works
Tony and Daniela Coxon 
Elcometer Ltd
Ann and Cedric Jeffay
Derek and Tricia Lewis 
Helen Winterson Ltd

PRINCIPAL SPONSOR

MAJOR SPONSORS

POPS SERIES SPONSOR FAMILY SERIES SPONSORS

CONCERT SPONSORS
Barclays Corporate 
BASF plc
Brother (UK) Ltd
Coutts & Co
Eversheds LLP
KPMG
Lincoln College
Lombard 
Manchester Airport
N M Rothschild and Sons Ltd
NatWest
Nichols plc
PZ Cussons plc
The Royal Bank of Scotland
Siemens plc
Yang Sing Ltd

EDUCATION SPONSORS
Brother (UK) Ltd
Cargill plc
Holland’s Pies
Manchester Airport
Nichols plc
PZ Cussons plc

ENSEMBLES SPONSORS
DLA Piper UK LLP
Nichols plc 
Piggott & Whitfield Ltd

RECORDING SPONSOR
dCS

2058 FOUNDATION
PRINCIPAL BENEFACTORS
Manchester Airport
Martin and Pat McMillan
The Oglesby Charitable Trust
Carole and Fred Nash
Tiger Developments
CIM Investment Management 

Ltd
DLA Piper UK Ltd
N M Rothschild and Sons

MAJOR BENEFACTORS
Peter Heath
David and Mary McKeith
Brother (UK) Ltd
PZ Cussons plc
Nigel Warr
David Wertheim and Family
Kirby Laing Charitable Trust
Kobler Trust 
Martin and Jacqueline West

The 2058 Foundation is a restricted 

fund of the Hallé Concerts Society 

established in the Hallé’s 150th 

Anniversary year to support specific 

artistic and education projects.

MILLENNIUM CLUB
Bruntwood
N M Rothschild & Sons Ltd
PZ Cussons plc

EDUCATION SUPPORTERS
AND PARTNERS

Association of Greater Manchester
Authorities

Association of British Orchestras
Bolton Music Service
Bury Music Service
Carole and Fred Nash
Cheshire East Council
Sir Mark and Lady Elder 
Find Your Talent (Bolton)
The Foundation for Sport and the

Arts
Future Talent
HMP Styal
HMYOI Thorn Cross
Manchester Art Gallery
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The Hallé is grateful to the
following for their support of the
Patron Programme through gifts
to the Hallé Concerts Society,
Charles Hallé Foundation and
Hallé 2058 Foundation and also
to those supporters who wish to
remain anonymous.

CONDUCTOR’S CIRCLE 
Mr Peter Heath
Carole and Fred Nash
Mr & Mrs H D Walmsley
Martin & Jacqueline West

MAESTOSO
In memory of Mr & Mrs N J

Adams
J R Bushell (Bolton) Ltd
Mr Colin J Croxford
Valerie & Peter Dicken
Ian Simpson and Jo Farrell
Dr Anne Fuller
Mrs Juliet Gibbs
Mr John K & Mrs Elaine T.Laurie
E S and A M Pysden
Mr & Mrs B Simons
Martin and Sandra Stone

Crescendo
Margaret and Jim Armstrong
Mrs Carole Baume
John & Joan Bell
Mr John Biggins
Mrs Vivienne Blackburn
Dr Christopher Brookes
Dr. Susan M Brown 
Lawrence David Cody and in

memory of Mr and Mrs L.J.
Cody 

Mr P Conway 
Mr Jonathan Dean 
David and Beryl Emery 
Mr & Mrs J Fox 
Mr John Geddes 
Mr John Hall 
Mrs J M Hindshaw 
Mrs Tessa Holmes 
Audrey & Harold Insley 
Mr Mark Kenrick 
Lee Bakirgian Family Trust
Mrs Marie Levy 
Susan and David Marcer 
Dr and Mrs Ian McKinlay OBE 
Stella & the late Harold

Millington 
David and Jane Murphy 
Mr Martin Rayner 
Paul and Marlene Rink 
T. G. Roberts 
Brian and Glenna Robson 

Tony and Yvonne Russell 
Sheila and Simeon Rydz 
Mr Malcolm F Sheppard 
Sylvia Stanley 
Mr & Mrs James A Stott 
Mr & Mrs Brian Tetlow 
Mrs E G Tonge 
Mrs Sheila Tonge 
Mr J H Turner 
Mr David Watchorn 

INTERMEZZO
Mrs Lindsay Alker
Mohammed Amin
Dr Peter Barberis
Tony Bates
Mrs Sharman Birtles JP, DL
Miss Sheila Blackett
Mr Frank Blamey
Mrs Sandra Bolton
Mrs M A Bousfield
Mrs Margaret Bradshaw
H & J Brave
Mrs Maxine Buchanan
In memory of Albert Burley
Miss M Butterworth
Pamela Cate
Mrs B J Chartres
Monica & Mick Clark
Mr N S Cooke
Mr Julian Craddock
Mr & Mrs Philip Crookall
Sarah Crouch
Mrs Jennifer Daly
Mr G. J. Davison
Mrs Sarah A Davnall 
Mr Antony Doust
Mr Ernest Eastwood
Dr. George A. Eccleston
Mr B Fitton
Mrs Rose Fitton
Ann Flowerday
Mr A Fowell
Mr Alistair Fox
Jeremy and Gillian French
Mr T L Fry
Vanessa and Clement Goldstone
Mrs Jane Hampson
Mr A P Haworth
Mr David Haworth
Mr Roger N Hill
Bronwyn & Stephen Kerr
Mr David Knott
Mr J G Knox
Miss E P Leaver
Mr F P S & Mrs D A B Marriott
Mr Alexander G Neil
Mr John D Owens
Mr Clive Parsons
Mr R Payne
Mr Alan Pearson

Mr Bruce Pimlott
Mr and Mrs J P Platt
Mr & Mrs C H Pooley
Mr Paul Reynolds
Joan & Graham Rogers
Mr & Mrs R J W Rogers
Mrs D Senior
Ken Shone
Mr John Turner
Mr Brian Walker
Mr R B Walsh
Mr David Walton
Mr J C White
Mr John Wildman
Professor & Mrs Philip Wiles
Joan Wood
Mr N Woods

SCHERZO
Mr Peter Adamson
Mrs E Anslow
Professor & Mrs R D Arnell
Mr Peter T Atherton
Mr Barry J Ball
Mr Michael Barley
Mr C Barton
Mr David Battman
Professor Tony Berry
Mr G N Berry
Mr Paul K Berry
Mr Richard Binch
Mr Robert Birbeck
Mrs M Birkin
Ms Annie Bracken
In memory of Margaret

Brailsford
Mrs E M Bridson-Jones
Philip Broughton
Miss Georgina Bunbury
Professor Martin Burch
Dr & Mrs L Caprio
Miss Christine S Catherall
Mr Tom Chadwick
Mr R Chattington
Mrs Kathleen Cleary
Mrs & Mrs Peter Connell
Derek Cooke
Mr H C Cowen
Mr John Critchley
Canon Dennis E Crook
Mr & Mrs J B & Sylvia

Crummett
Mr D J Cunningham
Mrs J D Darwent
Miss Daphne Dawson
Mrs Norma P E Dawson
Mr & Mrs B A DeSousa
Professor D Donnai
Mr Paul Durham
Mr J R Eaton
Mr E Alan Eaves

A Music Lover
Rev'd & Mrs J. F. Ellis
Mrs Margaret Evans
Mr David F Finch
Mr Sean D Fleming
Mr George Fletcher
Mr David A Foster
Miriam & Michael Fox
Mignon & Harold Franks
Mr J Frazer
Dr Tim Gartside
Mr Adrian Gerrard
Mrs J Gill 
Mrs Margaret Gillespie
Liz and Chris Glynn 
Mrs A J Golding
Mr J A Goulding
Mr and Mrs R Green
Mr T Greene
Mr John D Gregory
Dr R Gregory
Mrs Anne Greig
Mr Richard Guthrie
Mrs Lila and the late Mr

Geoffrey Hallett
Mrs U Hamilton
Mr C W Hampson
Mr John Hannah
Mrs Thora Harnden
Mrs Bessie Harper
Brian and Bridget Harris
Lynne M Harrison
Dr Geoffrey Hartley
Mr & Mrs D Hawkes
Mr Peter Haworth
Mrs Ann Heath
Mr John Heine
Mr Peter Hewer
Reverend C J C Hewitt
Mr & Mrs J M Hill
Mr J R H Hoyle
Professor H Hughes 
Mr Malcolm Hunter
Mr John Jackson
Dr Roger John
Miss B. M. Norgain and Miss A.

R. Johnson
Mr Alan Jones
Mr Brian Jones
Mr G T Jones
Frank and Alma Jones 
Mr Kenneth Kay
Mr & Mrs Rex Keen
Mr & Mrs G R Kelavey
Mr Steven Kossowicz
Mr Bernard Lawrence
Mr Derek Lees
Mr Harry Lipson
Mrs Hilda Mallalieu
Mrs Ruth M Markwick
Dr & Mrs PJ Marriott
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Mr T Marsden
In memory of Bill and Florrie

Mathews
Mrs Stella McCarten
Mrs Bernice Meagher
Mr John Meriton
Mr Paul Midgley
Mr Derek Miller
Mr David Milner
Mr Robert Mitchell
Dr. R. G. Mitchell
Mr Peter Moorhouse
Mr Peter Mountain
Mr P K Murphy
Miss Sheila Naden
Mr Ronald Nolan
Miss Mary I Ohlson
Ms Janet Ormerod
Mr David O'Sullivan
Angela and Mike Owen
Mrs Denise Parkin
Mr R Pearce
Mrs Heulwen Pickering
Mr J Platt
Mr Victor Potapczuk
Miss K M Price
Dr R E Price
Mr William Pringle
Mrs J Prior
Mrs M Pritchard
Mr Martin Pritchard
Mrs Jean R Proud
Mr T J Quinn
Mr John Race
Mr P G Rees
Mrs Iris Reynolds
Canon C Roberts
Mr D W Roberts
Mr K V Roberts
Miss M J Roscoe
Mrs J Rowlands 
Professor and Mrs MG

Rusbridge 
Mrs J Ryner 
Mr & Mrs Sanderson 
Mr James A Scott 
Mr & Mrs C Seville 
Mr D.H. & Mrs. J. Shawcross 
Mr. Simon Shelbourn 
Mr T J Sheppard 
Marjorie Simons 
Mr & Mrs Frankell 
Charles & Helen Smith 
Mr Colin Smith OBE 
Mr Alan Spier 
Mr & Mrs RT & CM Stafford 
Mr Dennis Staunton 
Mr Frank Stoner and Mrs

Margaret Dudley-Stoner 
Mr Ronald E Sullivan 
Mrs. E. Sutcliffe 

Mrs Rosemary Taylor 
Mrs M E Thompson 
Mr John Thomson 
Enid and the late Harry Thorpe 
Mr Brian G Tomkins 
Mr Chris Tucker 
Mr Philip Turner 
Tom Uprichard 
Mr Peter and the late Mrs Diana

van der Feltz 
Mr P R Walker 
Mrs Anne Ward 
Mr G Watson 
Mr Peter R White 
Mr C F Winter 
Mrs Ann Wooliscroft 
Dr J M Worth 
Dr David Yorke

We are also grateful to the following for their financial support

TRUSTS AND CHARITABLE FOUNDATIONS
The Andor Charitable Trust
Angus Allnatt Charitable Foundation
The Elaine and Neville Blond Charitable Trust
Church Burgesses Education Foundation
Coutts & Co. Charitable Trust
The D’Oyly Carte Charitable Trust
Duchy of Lancaster Benevolent Fund
The J Paul Getty Jr Charitable Trust
The Gladys Jones Charitable Trust
The Joanies Trust
The Kobler Trust
The Lauriston Trust
The P Leigh-Bramwell Trust E
The MFPA Trust Fund
Musicians Benevolent Fund
The Oglesby Charitable Trust
PRS for Music Foundation
Pilkington General Charity Trust
The Radcliffe Trust
The Rycroft Children’s Fund
Sale Mayoral Fund
The Scotshill Trust
The Seary Charitable Trust
The Sheffield Town Trust
The Dorothy Pamela Smith Charity
The Thistle Trust
The Tolkien Trust
The Zochonis Charitable Trust
Anonymous

HALLÉ FAMILY OF
BENEFACTORS 
Mrs A Alford
Mr C K Andrews
Mr and Mrs Black
Pamela Cate
Mr Peter Copping
Miss Rebecca Louise Finch
Mrs Vivian Glass
Mr Harry Johnson
Mr A and the late Mrs A Johnson
Kenneth Kay
Mr C H Pooley
Brian and Glenna Robson
Bernadette Rudman
Mr and Mrs R P Shepherd JP DL
Lynne and Bob Spencer
Mr and Mrs Brian Tetlow
Anonymous
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Mr A S Akers
Mr Edmund R Amesbury
Mr M Amin
Mrs D Ashworth
Mr & Mrs Bailey
Mr David Banks
Dr R N Barton
Mr Gordon W Bell
Mr & Mrs L Black
Miss J Blanksby
Mrs S P Boffey-Longworth
Miss M Bridge
Mr Edwin Brockbank
Dr Christopher C P Brookes
Dr Martin Burch
Mrs Pamela A Cate
Paul France
Mrs Janet Y Clark
Mr David Clayton
Mr Lawrence D Cody
Mr D N Dale
Mr S Z De Ferranti
Mr B A Desousa
Rev H Dickinson
Mr A C Dorney
Mr. and Mrs. Durling
Mr Frank Raymond Eades
Mr John A East
Mrs Shirley J Edmundson
Dr Rosemary Ellerby
Mr B Fitton
Mr H L Franks
Mrs C S Frieze
Miss P M Geake
Dr Roger Gillett
Mrs P M Gillett
Mr Roy Gillibrand
Mr M J Glicher
Mr R C Godlee
Miss Zenovia Goonan
Mrs V Graystock
Mr N Grimshaw
Mr J B Haddow
Mr P Hampson
Mr Roger Hardcastle
Mrs Ann Hart
Mr David Haworth
Mrs Thelma Hepworth
Mr P G Hesham
Mrs E Holt
Mr J R H Hoyle
Mrs J Hunt
Miss Frances R Jessop
Mr R W S Jevon
Mrs A Jones
Mr G Jones
Mr Kenneth Kay
Dr Joyce Kennedy
Mr R H Kletz
Mrs Patsy Lawler
Mr. Ronald V. Lea

Miss E P Leaver
Mr M A Lloyd
Mr A W Lyall
Mrs H MacDonald
Mr Martin McDonald
Mr Martin McMillan
Mr S J Miley
Mrs Stella Millington
Dr Brian Molyneaux
Mr Raymond Monk
Mr F B Morris
Miss Amy Morris
Mr R Needler
Mr Neville Phillips
Mr F R Purslow
Miss Anni Quarterman
Dr. B S H Rarity
Mrs J P Ratcliffe
Mrs J P Ratcliffe
Mr Roger C Rees
Mr J D Rigg
Miss H M Robinson
Dr. S M Ross
Mr Roger Rostron
Ms Bernadette Rudman
Mrs. Anne Rushton
Mr Andy Ryans
Professor J E Scott
Mr Robert P Shepherd Jp Dl
Mr. Clive F. Smart
Mr Warren J Smith Jp
Mr L Smith
Mr Charles Smith
Mr & Mrs Bj Stickings
Mr F Summerfield
Sir John Tavare
Mr D A Taylor
Mr Ian Taylor
Mr G D Thornton
Sir Simon Towneley
Dr G M Trafford Jones
Mr E J Watson
Mr Martin West
Mr T Windsor
Mr Jeffrey Worden
Mr Peter Worrell
Mr John K Wrigley
Dr R M Yule
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Mr Frank Abbey
Miss Ruth I Abbott
Christopher Abbott
Mr F Y Abel
Mr Robert Abrahamsen
Dr John Ackroyd
Professor P H Adams
Mr Paul Adkins
Miss M Adshead
Mrs Muriel Agboola
Mr R Aitchison
Mr D I Aitchison
Mrs Freda Albrecht
Miss M S Aldington
Mr Geoffrey Aldous
Mrs Anna M Allardice
Mrs Winifred A Allen
Mrs Patricia J Allen
Mr G Allen
Mrs Judith Allison
Mr R J Allright
Mr. Fred R. Alsberg
Mr. Fred R. Alsberg
Mr P J Alvey
Mr R J M Anderson
Miss Carolyn J Andrews
Mr Charles Andrews
Mr. Raymond Anslow
Mrs Gerlinde A Anten
Mrs Dorothy Y Aplin
Mr D S Appleton
Miss J D Archibald
Mr Bryan Armitage
Professor Robert Derek Arnell
Mr John Ashley
Mrs Janet Aslan
Mr J Atkinson
Mrs D J Atkinson
Mr R K Aylwin
Mr M Baggott
Dr R J Bailey
Mr J S Bailey
Mr W A Baird
Mr Anthony W Ball
Mr R Ball
Mr Barry J Ball
Mr. Michael J Ball
Mrs. Mary Ball
Mr F W Bamford
Miss Hilary Banfield
Mr J D Bannister
Mr Anthony W Barber
Mr. and Mrs. E Barber
Dr Peter Barberis
Ms Emma J Bardsley
Reverend Brian W Barker
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Barlow
Miss Joan M Barlow
Mrs A B Barnes
Mrs Eva Barnes
Mr Michael Barnes

Lord J Barnett
Mr Martin S Barnett
Mr Bernard L Barratt
Mr Leonard P Barrett
Mrs Leah Barron
Mr J M Barton
Mr F Bryan Basketter
Miss K M Bates
Mr David E Battman
Mrs E M Batty
Mrs Lorna Beacock
Dr Robert Beale
Mr James Beddoes
Mrs M E Bedford
Mrs B Beeley
Mr P Beesley
Mrs Marjorie Beeston
Dr Ursula Beetles
Mr R D Behrend
Mr. Adrian Beirne
Mrs Alison M Bell
Mr Thomas Bell
Mrs M P Bellotti
Miss Lorraine Belshaw
Miss Joyce Belton
Dr Maurice E Benaim
Mr Martyn Bennett
Mr N Bennett
Miss Angela G Bennett
Mr George Bennison
Mrs J R Beressi
Mrs Hilary Berkin
Mr I C Berridge
Mr. Paul K. Berry
Professor Anthony Berry
Mr Arthur W Bevan
Mr Arthur W Bevan
Dr Stephen Bidey
Mr John Biggins
Mr Alan Binns
Mr Robert Birbeck
Mr A Birch
Mrs A Birch
Mr D J Bird
Mr J M Bird
Mr. Michael S. Birkett
Mrs Elizabeth Birss
Mr W W Birtley
Mr J Birtwistle
Mrs Elizabeth Birtwistle
Mrs Helen Blackburn
Miss Sheila Blackett
Mrs S R Blake
Mr Frank Blamey
Mrs P L Blance
Mrs Shirley K Blankley
Ms Hilary Blumer
Mr Michael Blunt
Mr Geoffrey Bond
Mr Clive R Bond
Mr Martin Bond

Mr A C Boot
Mr. A T Booth Cbe
Mrs Joyce D Booth
Mrs Nora M Booth
Miss Elizabeth Mary Booth
Mrs M Boothby MBE
Mr Howard J Borrington
Mr John M J Bowden
Mrs Margaret A Bowen
Mr Douglas Bowyer-Bates
Mrs Yvonne Bradbury
Mr. and Mrs. M I Braddock
Mrs R Bradley
Mr David Bradley
Mr D N Bradley
Mrs Margaret Bradshaw
Mr David Brailsford
Mr Mark Brailsford
Mr N G Bramley-Haworth
Mr M Brammah
Mr J I Bramman
Mrs P M Brannon
Mr Geoffrey Breakell
Mr. and Mrs. J M. Brennan
Ms Elisabeth Bridgford
Mr Nick Bridson
Dr Patricia F Brien
Mr R A Briggs
Miss L D. Briggs
Mr D R Briggs
Dr B W Broadbent
Mrs Pamela Joyce Broadhurst
Mr A K Brochwicz-Lewinski
Mrs J Brodie
Mr John F R Brooks
Mr John Brooks
Mr. Philip Broughton
Mr Martin J Brown
Mr William A M Brown
Mr Eric Brown
Mr. James Brownlow
Mr R A C Buchanan
Mrs Maxine Buchanan
Mrs Hilda Buckley
Mr Philip S Buckley
Mrs Eloise Buist
Mrs Eloise Buist
Miss Georgina Bunbury
Mr Andrew Bunting
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur J Burden
Mrs. Brenda Burley
Mr Philip Burman
Miss Tracy Burns
Mrs A Burns
Mrs Elizabeth Burns
Mrs J K Burslem
Dr I D Burton
Miss E M H Burton
Mrs D E Butterworth
Mrs Hilary Caesar
Mr. Kenneth D. Caird

Mr Andrew Calverley
Mr Peter Cameron-Brown
Miss D Campbell
Mrs G M Campbell
Mrs M B Candler
Mr William B Carlyle
The Venerable Desmond

Carnelley
Mr T O Carr
Mr J L Carroll
Mrs M Carson
Mrs. and Mr. Sheila Carter
Ms. Annabel Carter
Mr George H Carter
Mr J R Cartmel
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas

Cartwright
Mrs Anna Casey
Miss Christine S Catherall
Miss Enid M Catterall
Mr J K Chadwick
Dr A Chambers
Mrs B J Chartres
Mrs L Chase
Mrs M L Chatfield
Mr Hugh Cheeseright
Mr B D Chernick
Mrs Valerie Chew
Mr. Kenneth Chichester
Mr M J Childs
Dr G E Christie
Mr. John N Christmas
Mrs F J Christou
Mr Brian Clamp
Mr Brian Clamp
Mr Stuart C Clark
Mr. and Mrs. M Clark
Dr Joan V Clarke
Mr M J Clayton
Miss A F Clayton
Mrs Kathleen Cleary
Mr Peter Cleworth
Mrs Gloria Clifford
Mr John D Clough
Dr E M Coates
Mrs Pauline Cockcroft
Mr H T Cocker
Mrs B Cocks
Mr E A Coldrick
Miss P A Coley
Miss W M Collantine
Mr R T Collier
Mr John Neville Collinge
Mrs. A Connolly
Dr Michael Conway
Mr Charles D Cook
Mrs M Cook
Mr Neville Cooke
Mrs P Coombs
Mr T Cooper
Mrs Jose M L Cooper
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Mrs A M Cope
Mr. Peter S. Copping
Mr. James Coppock
Mr William Corlett
Mr. Keith Cornick
Mr C Brendan Costello
Mrs Joyce Cotgrave
Mr Mark Paul Cowan
Mr Henry C Cowen
Mrs Hetty P Cowen
Mrs S J Cowlard
Mr William N Cowley
Mr. Richard S Cowley
Mr Julian Craddock
Dr B M Craven
Mrs L E Crewe
Mrs E Crick
Mr John Critchley
Mrs E A Croft
Mr F W Croft
Dr David Croft
Mrs Margaret R Croker
Mr Philip Crookall
Mrs. Brenda Cropper
Mr G E Cross
Mrs Linda M Crossley
Miss Barbara Crossley
Ms. Sarah Crouch
Mrs N A Crowe
Mr Colin J Croxford
Mr M A Cullen
Mr M J Cullen
Dr. C S Cundy
Mr M Cunningham
Mrs Pamela M Cunningham
Dr Ian Curbishley
Mr. Roy Dailey
Mrs Pauline M Dale
Mrs Margaret Dale
Mrs Marie Dale
Mrs Jennifer Daly
Mr N Daniels
Mrs A Das
Dr R H Davenport
Mr R F Davies
Mr G B Davies
Miss E Davis
Mr. G Davison
Mrs Sarah A Davnall
Mrs A Dawber
Dr Leslie Dawson
Mr Peter J Dawson
Mrs Norma Dawson
Mrs Nora Dawson
Mr. and Mrs. Derek De Belder
Mr Alan M Dean
Mr. and Mrs. D G Dearden
Mr Edmund Deasey
Reverend Francis Deeney
Mr D Delahunty
Mrs Maura Delany

Miss Joyce T Delves
Mr Peter Dent
Mrs K J Dent
Professor Peter Dicken
Mr Michael Dicken
Mr. and Mrs. Alan J Dickinson
Mr John Dickinson
Dr D G Dingle
Dr D G Dingle
Mr Donald Diskin
Prof G B Dix
Mrs Evelyn Dixon
Mrs Marjorie A Dixon
Mrs Lynda A Dobbie
Mr M J Dobbin
Mr Brian Dodge
Mr D V Dormer
Mr B Dronsfield
Mr John Duckett
Mr John Duckett
Miss Lesley M Duckworth
Mrs V Dudley
Mr F L Duffield
Mr S B Dugdale
Miss J E Dunlop
Miss M L Dunn
Dr Paul Durham
Mr. Trevor Eades
Mr R Earnshaw
Mr Barry Eastwood
Mr H G Ebbins
Dr George A Eccleston
Mrs Valerie Edminson
Mrs Eileen Edmonds
Mr M Edmondson
Mrs J Edwards
Dr D L Edwards
Mr John Edwards
Mrs J M Edwards
Dr T G Elson
Mrs Beryl K Emery
Mr D R Emery
Mr Nigel G Etheridge
Mrs Joy Evans
Mrs Jean A Evans
Mrs Margaret M Evans
Mr R H Evans
Mr J R Evans
Mr J T Evans
Mrs Janet Evans
Mr Michael D Evans
Mr Peter D Fairclough
Mrs D Falconer
Prof Patrick G Farrell
Mr David Farrow
Mrs Stella G Faulkner
Dr K M Fawcitt
Mr Jack Fillingham
Mr David F Finch
Mr. and Mrs. R A Finnis
Mr J H Fisher

Mr Norman T Fitt
Mrs Rose Fitton
Mr J Fitzmaurice
Mr Herbert Fleet
Mr Sean D Fleming
Mr Harold J Fletcher
Mr George Fletcher
Mrs. E D. Flett
Mr Magnus S Flett
Mr I H K Flinter
Mrs Ann Flowerday
Miss Beryl Footman
Mr. and Mrs. K W Foster
Mr Peter J H Foulds
Mrs. Eileen Fox
Mr John H Fox
Mr. Alistair D Fox
Mr Peter L Frank
Miss Edith Frank
Dr Andrew H Fraser
Mr Alan Fraser
Mrs Beryl Freer
Mr J N Froggatt
Dr Tom Fryers
Dr Anne R Fuller
Miss Agnes M. Furphy
Prof C S B Galasko
Mrs Christine Gallaway
Mrs Rita Galloway
Mrs Sheila J Gardner
Mrs A Gardner
Miss Edith H Garner
Mr H K Garnett
Professor John Garside
Dr Timothy Gartside
Mr J W Gartside
Dr. and Mrs. Malcolm Gatley
Mrs Elaine Mary Gavin
Miss K Gedd
Mr. J M. Geddes
Dr. Geoffrey A. Gee
Mr Adrian Gerrard
Mrs L A Gifford
Mrs Kathleen Gildon
Mrs J Gill
Mrs Margaret Gillespie
Dr D Gillibrand
Venerable R J Gillings
Mrs Margaret Gilman
Mrs Sylvia Gilmore
Mrs Margaret Gittins
Mrs Vivian Glass
Mrs S P Gledhill
Mr Bruce Gledhill
Miss G M Glover
Mr I J Glover
Mr I R Godwin
Mrs Sheila E Gold
Mrs A J Golding
Miss Jean Goldsmith
Judge Clement Goldstone

Mr William Golightly
Mrs Barbara Goodall
Mrs Lesley Gort
Mr Keith J Gorton
Mrs Isobel G Gosling
Mrs B M Goulding
Mr G Gouldsbrough
Mr Christopher John Grafham
Mr I M Graham
Mrs J A Graham
Mrs Diane Grainger
Mrs Margaret Gray
Mr Stephen Gray
Mrs Patricia Greaves
Mr Ronald Green
Mrs A Green
Ms Mavis Green
Mr Neil Greening
Mr Ian Greenwood
Mr Michael Greenwood
Mr J C B Gregson
Mrs Anne Greig
Mr M I Grierson
Mr A L Griffith
Mr E K Grime
Mrs Jean Grimshaw
Dr Prosanto K Guha
Mr Stanley Haddock
Mrs D C Hadfield
Mr M T Haigh
Mr David O Haines
Dr I M Hall
Mr John Hall
Mr David M Hall
Mr Gordon Hall
Mrs V L Hallam
Mrs. E M. Halliwell
Dr J M Halliwell
Mrs Nancy Halliwell
Mrs Y Hallworth
Mr Tom Halsall
Mr Roy Ham
Mrs Clare J Hambleton
Mr P John Hamer
Miss Dorothy Hamer
Mrs Eveline Hamilton
Mr C W Hampson
Mr R Hampson
Mrs Jane Hampson
Mr F R Hancock
Mr M A Handler
Miss J N Handley
Mrs D Handley
Mr Colin Hankey
Miss M J Hannaford
Mr Raymond W Hansed
Mr E R Hardman
Mr B Hargreaves
Mr. P W Hargreaves
Mrs. Helen Harrington
Mr Richard Harrington
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Mr. Gordon R Harris
Mr Colin Harris
The Venerable R B Harris
Mrs. and Mr. M C Harris
Mrs. Nina Harris
Mrs Sheila Harrop
Mrs Margaret Harrop
Mr Graham L Hart
Mr L W Hart
Dr Michael G Hartley
Dr G Hartley
Mr Ernest Hartley
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan

Harwood
Dr Joan Hassall
Mr A P Haworth
Mr N A Haworth
Mrs. Beryl Hay
Mr Russell Haydon
Mr Richard W Hayes
Mr Dennis Hayes
Mr C A Hayman
Mr. Peter Heath
Mr William Heaton
Mrs A L Hellawell
Mrs Janet Hennessey
Mr Peter Henry
Miss Hazel Heron
Miss M Elisabeth Hessey
Mr. Peter D Hewer
Mrs Audrey Hewer
Mr. Roger F Hewitt
Miss D E Hewlett
Mr R F Heys
Mrs Margaret Heys
Mr Roger Lance Heywood
Mrs Barbara M Heywood
Mrs F C Higham
Mrs F C Higham
Miss A D Hill
Miss Christine M. Hill
Mrs Bridget A Hinds
Mrs J M Hindshaw
Mr D P Hines
Mr Gerald H Hirst
Mrs J Hochland
Mr Nicholas Hodgson
Mr Graham Hodgson
Mrs Moya G C Hollinrake
Mr. and Mrs. Geoff Holman
Mrs. Tessa Holmes
Mr Alan Holt
Mr N P Holt
Mr John R Holt
Dr J Hood
Mrs A Hook
Mr. and Mrs. J Horan
Dr B D Hore
Mr M Hosker
Mrs Valerie Hotter
Mrs M F Howard

Mr N J G Howarth
Mr James Howell
Mrs J A Howells
Dr W Hoyle
Mr David Hoyle
Ms P A Hubbard
Mr Geoffrey Hubbard
Mrs J E Hudson
Mr Stanley Charles Hudson
Dr Martin Hudson
Mrs J M Hughes
Mr John W Hughes
Mrs. C M. Hughes
Mrs Barbara Hughes
Mr David Hughes
Dr Helen E Hughes
Mrs Eileen Hume
Miss A F Humpage
Mr Chris Hunt
Mr G T Hunt
Miss D M Hunt
Mrs A L Hunt
Dr R J Hurlock
Mrs A R Hurrell
Mr D A Hurst
Mrs Patricia M Hurst
Mrs. K Hurst
Ms Susan Hutchins
Miss J A Hutton
Mr John A Hytner
Mr Raymond Ideson
Mrs Rita Inerfield
Mr Kouichi Inoue
Mr Humphrey A Insley
Mrs Helen Margaret Ireland
Mr Neil Isherwood
Mrs. and Prof. Jean Isherwood
Mrs Sylvia Isted
Miss Winifred L Jackson
Mr Robert Jackson
Mr Michael A Jackson
Miss Carol Jackson
Mr Leonard Jacobs
Mr Peter James
Prof Malcolm I V Jayson
Mr M Jeffrey
Mrs Freda Jenkins
Mr David A Jenkinson
Mr S M F Jennings
Mr Steven P Jennings
Mr Gerald Jepson
Dr Roger John
Mrs Jean B Johnson
Mrs H M Johnson
Mr J A Johnson
Dr R T Johnson
Professor Martin Johnson
Mr Derek W Johnson
Miss F Johnson
Mr Derek Jones
Mr P G Jones

Mr Arfon L Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Frank M. Jones
Mr Trevor H Jones
Mr P M Jones
Mrs Margaret J Jones
Mr G T Jones
Dr David Llewellyn Jones
Mr Alan Jones
Mr Trefor Jones
Mr Raymond C Jones
Mrs. Margaret Joscelyne
Mr Zbigniew Jurkowski
Mrs M L Kane
Mr D J Kay
Mr M S Kay
Mr Ernest Stuart Kay
Mrs J A Kaye
Mrs D Beryl Keeling
Mr Keeling
Mr Rex Keen
Mr Dennis Kelsall
Mr Stuart Kempster
Mr T J A Kendall-Carpenter
Miss Angela Kendrick
Mr Michael Kennedy
Mr Alan Kennerley
Dr William Kerns
Mr W Kerr
Dr Bronwyn Kerr
Mrs R Kersh
Mr J P Kershaw
Mr Bernard Kiernan
Mr Wilf Kimber
Mr J W King
Mrs Susan Kingsbury
Mrs B A Kinsella
Mr. and Mrs. W Kintish
Mr Harry Kippax
Mrs M A Kitson
Dr H J Klass
Mrs Diana M Kloss
Dr W F Knox
Mr John Graham Knox
Mr Steven Kossowicz
Prof Hein Kropholler
Mr. and Mrs. V Labaton
Mrs Dorothy Lacey
Mr G Lake
Dr Satinder Lal
Mrs. Audrey M. Lamb
Mr A T Lane
Dr Deborah Larah
Mrs Catherine M J Lavan
Mr R F Lawrence
Mr R F Lawrence
Miss M M Lawton
Miss Ethel Layer
Mr M J Leach
Mrs S R Leder MBE
Mrs Jane Lee
Lady A M Lee

Dr James T Leeming
Mrs. Susan Leeming
Mr Anthony Lees
Mr. and Mrs. Gordon R Lees
Mrs Denise Lees
Mrs S Leete
Mr C D Legge
Mr Richard Leigh
Mr Howard Leigh
Mrs Helen Lennie
Mr Stephen A Lentin
Mrs Helen R Lentin
Dr S A Leslie
Mrs. Marie Levy
Mrs Mary E Lewis
Mr Ralph A Lewis
Mrs. W Leyden
Mr David John Lindsley
Mrs P Linning
Ms M P Linton
Mr G Lipschitz
Mr Harry Lipson
Mr Leonard Lister
Mr V M Littler
Mr V M Littler
Mr. and Mrs. Livesey
Mr P H Livsey
Mr K D Lloyd
Mr. and Mrs. E N Lloyd
Miss C M Lloyd
Dr D M Lomas
Mr G A R Lomax
Miss E Lomax
Miss E Lomax
Mr J M Longworth
Mr J G Lonsdale
Sir Bernard Lovell
Mr C A Lowe
Mr Dennis Lowe
Miss Stella J Lowe
Mrs E Ludlow
Mrs Olive Lumb
Mrs W A Lunt
Cllr J P MacCarron
Mr James Madden
Miss Helen Madden
Mr Graham B Main
Mr John Major
Mrs Jennifer L Malcolm
Professor N P Mallick
Miss K M Manistre
Mrs Phyllis Mann
Dr M Marchant
Dr M Marchant
Mr Bryan Marchington
Mr D F Mardon
Mrs Marie Markland
Michael Marks
Mrs R Markwick
Mrs V M Marlow
Mrs B Marples
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Mr Michael S Marsh
Mr Derrick J Marsh
Mrs Joyce Marshall
Mr J Marshall Shaw
Mrs M L Marsland
Mrs Muriel Martin
Mrs M E Martin
Mr Anthony Martin
Mr H L Mason
Mr M D Masters
Miss Joan D Mathews
Dr A G Mathie
Mr Cedric Mathison
Dr David R Matthews
Mr William P Matthews
Dr David R Matthews
Mrs Sheila Maw
Mrs M R Mayne
Mr A G McAllister
Mrs Eileen C McCall
Mrs Lynne M McCall
Mrs May McCall-Rink
Mrs Stella McCarten
Mr E McCormick
Dr A O McDougall
Mr A A McHugh
Mr Peter McIlwham
Mr. Robert T. McIntyre
Mr Leslie McKeever
Mr. David McKeith
Sir Thomas McKillop
Miss Rita McLean
Mrs Ann McLoughlin
Ms Jennifer McNamee
Mr C E Meadowcroft
Mrs S K Merica
Mr R C Merry
Mr Albert Mesrie
Mrs J R Messenger
Mr Richard J Middlehurst
Dr Kenneth Middleton
Mr J Milburn
Mrs V A Miller
Dr Peter I Miller
Miss M E Miller
Mr Derek Miller
Dr Raymond Million
Mrs Sheila R Mills
Professor Tony J Mills
Mr T G Mills
Mr David Milner
Mrs Elizabeth Mitchell
Dr Rosemary Mitchell
Mrs M E Mitchell
Mr Alec Mitchell
Mr Neville Mitchell
Mr A B Mitchell
Mr. and Mrs. William R

Molyneux
Mr Harry Moon
Dr Andrew W Moore

Mr. and Mrs. Terry Moore
Mr Peter Moorhouse
Mrs Florence Moorhouse
Dr Margaret Morey
Mr Philip Morey
Mr S J Morley
Mr J B Morrell
Mr Peter J Morris
Lady Irene Morris
Mr William Morton
Mrs Morton
Mr George M Morton
Mr M E Morton
Dr Patrica Moss
Miss J Motler
Mrs Christine Muller
Mrs E A Mulliner
Mrs Gladys Mundy
Mr David Murphy
Mr P K Murphy
Miss Jean M. Murray
Mr David John Myers
Mr. and Mrs. R Napper
Dr Naqvi
Ms. Mary Naughton
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Neale
Prof David Neary
Mr David Neary
Mr G Neary
Mr Alexander G Neil
Mr Robert Neill
Mr W Nelson
Mr G M Nelstrop
Mrs E Newall
Mr M Newton
Mr Andrew Nichols
Mrs June L Nightingale
Miss A D Noble
Dr P J Nolan
Mr Ronald Nolan
Mr W J Norbury
Mrs E M Norris
Mr Geoffrey North
Mrs Charlotte L Norton
Miss F Nutt
Mr J S Oakes
Mr I J O'Brien
Mr M J Ockelton
Mr D E O'Connor
Mr. and Mrs. David Odling
Mrs J D Oglesby
Mr D W Oglivy
Mr David O'Hara
Mr Peter O'Hare
Dr Adrian O'Hare
Miss Mary I Ohlson
Dr Samuel Oleesky
Mr. S P. Oliver
Mr Martin N Olley
Miss J O'Neill
Mr. and Mrs. A R Openshaw

Rev A D Orange
Mrs B Orant
Mr K G Orme
Ms Janet Ormerod
Miss A E Ottewell
Miss Christine M Owen
Ms Kathryn Owen
Mr Geoffrey Owen
Mr. and Mrs. John D. Owens
Mrs. P A Pace
Mr F Papangelou
Miss Barbara J Pape
Mr Michael J Parker
Mrs E P Parker
Mrs Denise Parkin
Mrs G Parkington
Dr R A Parr
Mr Roy Parrish
Mr Robert O Parry
Professor Geraint B Parry
Mr L W S Parry-Williams
Mr D J Parsons
Professor David J Parsons
Mr. and Mrs. Partridge
Miss Cynthia W Patten
Mr R W Paulson
Mr Bernard Payton
Mrs A E Peach
Miss J E Peacock
Mr Alan Pearce
Mrs Margaret Pearson
Mr & Mrs Robert K Pearson
Mr Roger Pearson
Mr N Pearson
Mr. F Pearson
Mr. F Pearson
Mr Douglas Pedley
Miss J M Pendlebury
Miss Barbara Pendlebury
Mr Nicholas J Penn
Mr S H Pennell
Mr George Pepper
Mrs K Perera
Mr. Patrick J R Perriam
Mr D R Pettifor
Mrs Heulwen Pickering
Miss G M Pickford
Mrs Patricia Mary Pickstone
Mr G M Piggott
Mr. and Mrs. D Pioli
Dr L Poller
Mr K Pollit
Dr Henry B Pollock
Mr David J Poole
Mr Daniel Poole
Mrs Leonie E Poole
Mr C H Pooley
Dr Postle
Mrs. Alison M. Potter
Mr Michael Potter
Mrs Helen M Powell

Mrs Nancy E Powell
Mr J A Prescott
Mrs M E Preston
Miss Kathleen M Price
Mr. Anthony D. Price
Mrs Patricia Pringle
Mrs M A Pritchard
Mr. Alan Prosser
Mrs J R Proud
Mrs Jean Pugh
Mr Edward Pysden
Mr Barrie Quilliam
Mrs. Pauline Quinn
Mrs S J Quinn
Miss Moira Rabbitt
Mrs Sylvia Radcliffe
Mr P Radnan
Mr Brian Rains
Mr J P Ravensdale
Ms V I Rawlinson
Mr John R Rawlinson
Dr Graham Read
Dr Anthony Redford
Mr P G Rees
Dr G Rees
Mrs Iris Reynolds
Mr Michael Rhatigan
Mrs B V Rhodes
Dr J Rich
Mrs Richards
Mrs Mavis Richardson
Mrs Ann Richardson
Mrs Margaret Ridehalgh
Mrs Lilian Rigby
Mr John W Rigg
Mrs Lois M Risley
Canon Cyril Roberts
Mr V G Roberts
Mr Terence Gordon Roberts
Mrs. W Roberts
Mr Stuart Robinson
Mr Leslie Robinson
Mrs M J Robinson
Mr. and Mrs. Brian Robson
Mr. and Mrs. Peter C. Roffey
Mr. Robert J W. Rogers
Dr Jessie Roland
Mrs J A F Roper
Mrs A Christine Rose
Mr John Rose
Mr Harry Ross
Mrs G Ross
Mrs M Ross-Sharp
Mr John Rothery
Mrs Susan Rowe
Mrs Susan Rowe
Mrs E Rowland
Mrs Jean Rowland
Mrs Yvonne Russell
Ms Katherine Russell
Mr Eric Russell
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Mrs May Rutter
Miss M Ruxton
Mr Simeon L Rydz
Mrs Sheila R Rydz
Mrs Eva J Ryner
Miss E A Ryner
Mr R Saberton
Dr J R Sampson
Mrs Jennifer Sandland
Mrs. K Sandler
Mr J F Sargeant
Mr. and Mrs. C C Sargent
Mrs V Saville
Mr Wolfgang Schady
Mr Wolfgang Schady
Miss D Schofield
Ms Judith Schoombie
Mr Peter G Scott
Mr Robert I Scott
Mrs Margaret J Scott
Mr James A Scott
Mr R Seath
Mr G T Seddon
Mr Derek Seex
Mrs L M Seex
Ms Pam Senior
Mr Clement Shalom
Ms Philippa Sharp
Dr Richard Sharp
Mr D C Shaw
Dr Susan G Shawcross
Mr. and Mrs. D H Shawcross
Mr David J Shearing
Mr I D Shepherd
Mr David Shepherd
Mr T J Sheppard
Mr Malcolm F Sheppard
Mr David Sherwood
Mrs Kathleen Shevelan
Mr Michael H Shipley
Mr S W Shone
Mr Kenneth Shone
Dr David R Shreeve
Mr A G Shrubsole
Miss E M Sifton
Mrs. Felicity A Silverman
Dr Robert F Simmons
Mr E D Simmons
Mr Christopher Simon
Mr Bryan Simons
Miss Marjorie Simons
Mr R M Simpson
Mr Ronald A Simpson
Ms C R Sing
Mrs Jan Slack
Mr Antony W Slater
Mr Alan Forster Slater
Mrs. Fay Slater
Mrs Marjorie Smethurst
Mrs K Smith
Mr A D Smith

Mr F G Smith
Mr Jack L Smith
Mr D C Smith
Dr C W Smith
Mr B M Smith
Mr. and Mrs. D E Smith
Dr Alan Smith
Miss Ethel Smith
Mrs J B Smith
Mr Denis Smith
Mr Colin Smith
Mr B Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Oswald Smith
Mrs S Sofield
Mrs Lynne Spencer
Mrs Judy Spencer
Mrs Susan Stamford
Mrs Sylvia Stanley
Mr Robert A Staton
Mr B P Stead
Mrs C M Stead
Dr. and Mrs. Leslie Steen
Mr J S Stephens
Mr Peter Stevens
Dr. Martin Steward
Mr Derrick W Stitt
Mr Geoffrey H Stockton
Mrs K A Stockton
Mrs D Stoddard
Mr Peter D Stokes
Mr A H Stone
Miss Margaret A Stordy
Mr James A Stott
Mr P L Stott
Ms. K Stott
Dr. and Mrs. Ian H Stout
Mrs Doreen Stretton
Mr L Stringer
Mr A W G Stubbs
Mr R E Sullivan
Mr John Sullivan
Mr. and Mrs. Jack Sunderland
Mrs E Sutcliffe
Mr D A Swindell
Mr J P Syner
Mr Shefali Talukdar Henry
Mr Andrew Tann
Mrs Benice Task
Mr David N Tatlock
Mr Roger C Taylor
Mr. and Mrs. Taylor
Mr M Taylor
Mrs M Taylor
Miss W A Taylor
Mr Ian Taylor
Dr David R Taylor
Mr. Arthur E. Taylor
Mrs J Taylor
Ms Anne Taylor
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Taylor
Dr John E Tebbett

Mr Arthur Tennant
Dr C E Terrell-Nield
Mr C J W Thickett
Mr Edward J R Thomas
Dr. E H Thomas
Mrs Alison Thomas
Mr Terence R Thompson
Mrs. P F. Thompson
Mr John Thompson
Mrs P Thompson
Ms Patricia M Thornhill
Mr John Philip Thornley
Mr Terence P Thornton
Mrs. Jackie Thorp
Mr Peter Thorpe
Mrs Enid Thorpe
Mr John M Throup
Mr D Tickle
Mr A G P Timmins
Mr Stuart Timmins
Mr E J Toft
Mrs Margaret G Toft
Mr Brian G Tomkins
Mr Donald H Tomlinson
Mrs E G Tonge
Mr Robert Tonge
Mrs Sheila Tonge
Mrs S Torr
Mr. and Mrs. Alan Trappe
Mr T Tsubaki
Mrs Susan Tully
Mrs N'gaire Tupling
Mr. John H. Turner
Prof. and Mrs. John D Turner
Mr J Turner
Mr Michael Turner
Mrs C E Turpie
Miss Vivien Tweddell
Mr James Tweddle
Mr J M Tyson
Mr T Uprichard
Mrs M Vaughan
Mrs Barbara E Vercambre
Mr Adrian M Vessey
Mr G V Von Arx
Mr John Wagstaff
Mr Donald E Wagstaff
Dr Basil J Wakefield
Mr J L Wales
Mr Brian M Walker
Mrs Elizabeth Walker
Mr. and Mrs. David G. Walker
Mr Ian Wallace
Mr. and Mrs. J R Walley
Mrs V E Wallworth
Mr John James Walsh
Mr Peter Walton
Mr G A Walton
Mr William Walton
Mr D S Walton
Mr. and Mrs. P Warbrick

Mr Roy Warburton
Mrs K Washington
Miss Joan B Waterworth
Mr J M Watson
Mr D Watson
Mr Mark Watson
Mr Stewart Watson
Mrs J Watson
Mr G Watson
Mr J S Weir
Mr Graham R Wells
Mrs E West
Mrs Wendy Westoby
Mr T B Weston
Mrs Sybil Westwood
Mrs C Westwood
Mrs Barbara H Westwood
Mr J G Wheater
Mrs Hazel J Wheeler
Mrs B Wheeler
Mr John Whibley
Mr J C White
Mr Jerry White
Mr P R White
Mr Joseph F White
Miss Emily White
Mr. Edmund D White
Miss Emily White
Mrs V Whitehead
Mr G H Whitehurst
Mrs Rosemary Whitesman
Mr Eric Whittaker
Mrs Vera Whittaker
Dr Stuart Whittaker
Mr and Mrs Whittam
Mr. and Mrs. G Whittle
Mr Kenneth Wigley
Mr Alan Wilbraham
Mr John Wildman
Mrs M E Wilkins
Mr W J Wilkinson
Mrs. Alison M. Wilkinson
Mr I Wilkinson
Mr E W Willerton
Dr Edward Williams
Mr Roger Glynn Williams
Mrs Joan Williams
Mrs Auriel Williams
Dr. and Mrs. Rhys T Williams
Mr T A Williams
Mrs Margaret Williams
Mrs Margaret Williams
Professor Arthur Williams
Miss W P Williamson
Mr Eric Williamson
Mr Michael Williamson
Mr R Willis
Dr Brian Wilson
Ms Lynne Wilson
Prof Graham M Winch
Mr. and Mrs. Gordon Winnard
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Lady Joyce Mary Winstanley
Mr C F Winter
Ms Judith Anne Winterson
Dr B Wolman
Mr P Wolstencroft
Miss J Wolstenholme
Mrs Joan Wood
Miss Nora Wood
Mr R A Wood
Mrs. Rita Woodhead
Mr A Woods
Mr Derek Woods
Mrs Margaret Woodthorpe
Miss Anna Woolley
Mrs Ann Woolliscroft
Mrs C H Woolliscroft
Mr D J Woonton
Mr Malcolm Worrall
Miss Myra Worsley
Miss B A Worsley
Dr J M Worth
Mr. and Mrs. Norton Wragg
Mr A H Wright
Mr Angus G D Yeaman
Dr David Yorke
Dr Mary W Young
Dr John Young
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FIRST VIOLINS
Lyn Fletcher Leader

Paul Barritt Permanent Guest

Leader

Sarah Ewins Associate Leader

Tiberiu Buta
Sarah Brandwood-Spencer
Zoe Colman
Alison Hunt †
Helen Bridges *
Nicola Clark *
Victor Hayes
John Gralak
Michelle Marsh

SECOND VIOLINS
Catherine Yates Section Leader

Philippa Jeffery
Paulette Bayley
Robert Taylor †
Caroline Abbott †
Grania Royce †
Christine Davey † *
Anthony Gibbs † *
John Purton
Hannah Smith

VIOLAS
Timothy Pooley † 

Section Leader
Julian Mottram †
Tom Beer
Piero Gasparini †
Robert Criswell †
Susan Voysey †
Chris Emerson
Gemma Dunne *
Anna Smith *
Susan Hodgson

CELLOS
Nicholas Trygstad Section

Leader

Simon Turner
Dale Culliford
Peter Worrall †
David Petri †
Jane Hallett
Clare Rowe
Julie-Anne Manning

DOUBLE BASSES
Roberto Carrillo-Garcia Section

Leader

Daniel Storer 
Yi Xin Han †
Beatrice Schirmer
Natasha Armstrong
Sian Holland

FLUTES
Katherine Baker Section Leader

Joanne Boddington

PICCOLO
Ronald Marlowe †

OBOES
Stéphane Rancourt Section

Leader

Virginia Shaw
Hugh McKenna †

COR ANGLAIS
Thomas Davey †

CLARINETS
Lynsey Marsh Section Leader

Rosa Campos-Fernandez

BASS CLARINET
James Muirhead †

BASSOONS
Graham Salvage † Section

Leader

CONTRA BASSOON
Steven Magee

HORNS
Laurence Rogers Section Leader

Tom Redmond
Julian Plummer †
Richard Bourn
Andrew Maher

TRUMPETS
Gareth Small Section Leader

Kenneth Brown †
Tom Osborne

TROMBONE
Roz Davies

BASS TROMBONE
Adrian Morris

TUBA
Ewan Easton MBE

TIMPANI
John Abendstern

PERCUSSION
David Hext † Section Leader
Riccardo Lorenzo Parmigiani
Erika Öhman

HARP
Marie Leenhardt

KEYBOARD
Janet Simpson †

† = 20 years’ Service Medal
* = Job share

MUSIC DIRECTOR
Sir Mark Elder CBE
Mr and Mrs Martin McMillan

LEADER
Lyn Fletcher 
Terry and Penny Moore
ASSISTANT CONDUCTOR
Andrew Gourlay
Mr and Mrs Nigel Warr
PZ Cussons
Sir Mark and Lady Elder

CHILDREN’S CHOIR DIRECTOR
Shirley Court
In memory of Louisa Kallenberg

FIRST VIOLINS
Alison Hunt
Mrs Vivienne Blackburn for Michael

Helen Bridges
Dr ChiKlingenberg

Nicola Clark
Elaine and Neville Blond Charitable Trust

Michelle Marsh
Sebastian de Ferranti Esq

Zoe Colman
Mr John Geddes

Tutti vacant
Mr M F Sheppard

SECOND VIOLINS
Catherine Yates
Lynne and Bob Spencer

Caroline Abbott
A.T. Anonymous

Paulette Bayley
Anonymous

Elizabeth Bosworth
Mr Peter Copping

Robert Taylor
Wistaston Opus One Group

Grania Royce
Mr Peter Fairclough 

Christine Davey
Lois and Sidney Risley

VIOLAS
Timothy Pooley
A Life Member

Robert Criswell
Mrs Ann McLoughlin

Piero Gasparini
Mrs Jane Fairclough 

Sue Voysey
Bolton Opus One Group

Chris Emerson
Lisa Sherlock

Tom Beer
Mrs B J Chartres 

CELLOS
Nicholas Trygstad
Martin and Sandra Stone 

Simon Turner
In memory of Mrs G E Whitehead

David Petri
In memory of Ken Lowe

DOUBLE BASSES
Roberto Carrillo-Garcia
Edmundson Electrical Ltd

Beatrice Schirmer
In memory of Hanneli and Moshe Pfeffer

Yi Xin Han
Stella and the late Harold Millington

Natasha Armstrong
John and Pat Garside

FLUTE
Katherine Baker
Mr Peter Heath 

Joanne Boddington
In memory of Eslyn Kennedy

OBOE
Hugh McKenna
Endowed by the late Lady Evelyn Barbirolli to
commemorate the career of her husband Sir
John Barbirolli

COR ANGLAIS
Thomas Davey
In loving memory of Douglas Crawford

CLARINET
Lynsey Marsh
Zig Zag (GB) plc

Rosa Campos Fernandez
Miss Carol Jackson

BASS CLARINET
James Muirhead
Anonymous

BASSOON
Alison Lee-Browne
Anonymous

HORNS
Laurence Rogers
C.K. Andrews Esq

Julian Plummer
Sir John Manduell CBE

Richard Bourn
Shared Trust

TRUMPET
Gareth Small
Shared Trust

Ken Brown
Mr and Mrs D G Walker

TENOR TROMBONES
Roz Davies
A. Dean-Smith Esq

BASS TROMBONES
Adrian Morris
Dr Leo Caprio 

PERCUSSION
David Hext
Rosemary Whitesman

Riccardo Lorenzo Parmigiani
Hallé Choir

TIMPANI
John Abendstern
In memory of Alan Glass

HARP
Marie Leenhardt
Martin and Jacqueline West

KEYBOARD
Janet Simpson
The Gladys Jones Charitable Trust
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We are grateful to these benefactors, each of whom endow a Hallé chair. Details

of the chair endowments can be obtained by calling 0161 237 7011.
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SOPRANOS
Lizzy Allerton 
Joanna Bacon
Barbara Barratt
Sarah Battye
Pat Carver 50

Judith Chaloner
Annie Coombs
Lynne Cowley
Claire Croft 
Sheena Cummins 30

Jackie Cuthbert
Sara Daintree
Daphne Dawson 20

Helen Earey
Elaine Evans
Yvonne Flood
Rachel Grimshaw
Jackie Harmer      
Anna Hunt
Glynys Hunter 20

Margaret Jennings 30

Helen Lee
Rosanna Lewis
Jane Lingham 40

Katy Lingwood
Katharine Longworth
Marika Metiuk
Sakurako Mishiro
Kathryn O'Leary
Meg Parnell
Amelia Phillips
Rosemary Pires 30

Cathy Riddington
Olivia Robinson
Caroline Scholey
Gill Simpson
Catherine Smith 
Renate Smithuis
Dorothy Stoddard
Jean Tracy
Jean Walker
Daphne Wallace
Merryl Webster
Maeve Whittaker
Rebecca Woolley

ALTOS
Elizabeth Alberti 20

Felicity Allen
Kate Booth
Pauline Broome 20

Rachel Brown
Kathy Buckley 30

Rowena Cockerham
Gill Faragher 20

Sarah Gardner
Gillian Gibson
Marjory Gray
Sue-Ann Harding
Lindsay Harford 20

Sally Haywood
Sara Holroyd 20

Rachel Hopper
Chris Hughes 30

Liz Jacobs
Rosemary Jones
Rhiannon Jones
Eve Langford
Jocelyn Lavin
Jane Lewis
Catharina Linkenbach
Virginia Lloyd 
Fiona McAvoy
Sue McKinlay 30

Amy Miles
Cath Monument
Judith Newton
Susan Oates 20

Barbara Oxley
Judy Paskell 20

Margery Peel 40

Alison Playfoot
Jean Plowright 20

Tessa Quayle
Maureen Rammell 20

Libby Reeve
Kathleen Renfrew 40

Marion Ridd
Clare Scott 30

Philippa Shooter
Caroline Summers
Elizabeth Threlfall
Kate Vlietstra
Gillian Wakeley
Wendy Walker
Rowena Ward

TENORS
Paul Brennan
Andy Cutler
John Elliott 20

David Evans
Michael Faulkner
Len Fishenden
Duncan Glenday
Phil Hilton
Chris Hopper
Phil Howarth
Ian Jones
Ronan Keaney
Stephen Parker
Tom Parnell
Laurence Price
Frank Rammell 40

Graham Rogers
James Vaughan
Richard Watson
Graham Worden
Martin Yule

BASSES
Peter Aldred 20

Vin Allerton 30

Sam Barton
Alistair Cowley
Philip Dobson
Michael Donmall
Graham Eagland
Michael Edwards
Alan Gee
Ken Greaves
Tom Green
Chris Green
Richard Hartwell
Chris Holroyd 20

Steve Hopwood
David Metcalfe
Graham Monument
Andrew Paterson
Stuart Perkins
Ralston Pierce 40

Richard Scott
Martin Steward
Nigel Stones
Cliff Tinker
John Ward 20

Clive Weake
Clemens Woellner
Ian Wood
Alex Wood
Graham Worth 

20 = 20 years’ service
30 = 30 years’ service
40 = 40 years’ service
50 = 50 years’ service
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S OFFICE
John Summers
Alison Kippax

FINANCE
Val Hawkin *
Adrian Goldstone
Matthew Wyatt
Claire O’Neill

ARTISTIC PLANNING AND ENSEMBLES
Geoffrey Owen *
Andrea Stafford

ENSEMBLES
Naomi Benn *
Jane Bulpin [PT]

Verity Gosling
Jo Pink [PT]

CONCERTS 
Stuart Kempster *
Tom Baxter
Jane Lee †
Carol Dutton
Alex Swift
Mark McAlister
Everett Parry
Steven Jones
Louise Brimicombe

EDUCATION
Steve Pickett *
Jacqui Dawber † 
Rachel Swindells
Claire Mattison (intern)
ARCHIVE
Eleanor Roberts [PT]

Stuart Robinson † [PT]

MARKETING
Andy Ryans *
Peter Naish
Harriet Shering
Elizabeth Robinson
Beth Wells (intern)

NEW MEDIA
Joseph Harrison

SPONSORSHIP AND FUNDRAISING
Kath Russell *
Martin Glynn
Alexandra Jobling
Eleanor Roberts
Vivienne Weller

* = Head of Department
† = 20 years’ Service Medal
PT = Part time

MUSIC DIRECTOR
Sir Mark Elder CBE
LEADER
Lyn Fletcher
PERMANENT GUEST LEADER
Paul Barritt
PRINCIPAL GUEST CONDUCTOR
Markus Stenz
ASSISTANT CONDUCTOR
Andrew Gourlay
YOUTH CHOIR DIRECTOR
Gregory Batsleer
CHILDREN’S CHOIR DIRECTOR
Shirley Court
ASSOCIATE COMPOSER
Colin Matthews

FOR TICKETS & CONCERT DETAILS

The Box Office
The Bridgewater Hall
Manchester
M2 3WS

0161 907 9000

FOR GENERAL ENQUIRIES

Hallé Concerts Society
The Bridgewater Hall
Manchester
M1 5HA

0161 237 7000

PRESS & MEDIA ENQUIRIES
0161 237 7008

CORPORATE & FUNDRAISING ENQUIRIES
0161 237 7023

MEMBERSHIP ENQUIRIES
0161 907 9090
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